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Corporate Profile
NGl

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Taifeng”)
is one of the major manufacturers of high-end home textile and cotton
yarn products in China, and is principally engaged in the production,
manufacturing and sale of high-end bedding and cotton yarn products
under the Taifeng brand, a Chinese Well-Known Trademark, as well as
Kangshow and | & Co. With its strong competitive edge, the Company
aims to meet the need for bedding and cotton yarn products from the
middle-to-high-end market.

The Company is committed to satisfying market demand by offering
quality products and services under the principle of “pursuing
excellence, creating value and contributing to the society”. We spare
no effort in product design, research and development, sales network
expansion and all-round brand image promotion, so as to further
enhance the brand value of Taifeng. The Company has set its goal of
becoming the leader and trend-setter of Chinese household style by
defining and promoting the Chinese home and life style.

Being one of the key manufacturers in China focusing on high-end
cotton yarns for use in the production of bedding products, the
Group has been among the top 10 enterprises in the national home
textile industry for many years. The well-established sales network of
the Group covers various large and midsize cities in China. As at 31
December, 2012, the Group had 865 self-operated flagship stores
and counters and 257 franchised stores across the country. The
Company was awarded Top 10 Effective and Profitable Enterprises in
the textile industry by the National Bureau of Statistics and Hong Kong
Outstanding Enterprises by Economic Digest in Hong Kong. Other
achievements include Shandong Famous Brand for bed linen and
silk quilt products under the Taifeng brand, China Patent Shandong
Star Enterprise, an “important textile enterprise with own brand and
growth potential for tracking and nurturing” in China, Selected Famous
International Brand for Nurturing and Development of Shandong
Province, Science and Technological Advancement Award (Third Prize)
of Shandong Province under the category of selenium nanoparticles
home textile products, Outstanding Enterprises of Corporate Culture
Development 2012, Top 10 Effective Enterprises in the National
Cotton and Chemical Fiber Textile Processing Industry and Top 10
Most Profitable Enterprises in the National Cotton and Chemical Fiber
Textile Processing Industry.
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Financial Highlights and Summary

MBERERBE

° Revenue increased by 11.6% to RMB2,401.1 million

° Revenue from the sales of branded bedding products

increased by 23.9% to RMB1,391.6 million

o  IWFJER11.6%2 AREE2,401,100,0007C

e MEABRHEWHIER23IBEARE
1,391,600,0007C

s HERIDHKRmMZDEIEFIEK20.0%EA

e  Segment profit from the manufacture and distribution of
bedding products increased by 20.0% to RMB674.8 million

° Profit for the year increased by 17.7% to RMB518.1million

° Basic earnings per share increased by 17.7% to RMB0.518

e  The Board has recommended a final dividend of RMB0.052 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2012

R #674,800,0007T

o FRRFER17.7%E ARKS518,100,0007C

o BREAXBFIERI7.7%E AR®E0.5187T

e BIFERBE_T-—FF+-A=+—8It
FERHEIRAREAERARK0.0527T

RESULTS 4
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=t+-BLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
B —EZ——4% =ZIZ-TH ZIZThE ZIZTN\FE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBFRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
Revenue Yo 25 2,401,049 2,152,167 1,846,177 1,354,068 1,057,524
Gross profits EF 949,470 829,684 639,581 396,331 186,968
Earnings before interest and BR#E -~ FLS AT
tax (‘EBIT”) 767,842 645,700 516,186 319,981 153,980
Profit attributable to owners of ARRIHER AELEF
the Company 518,076 440,103 416,790 248,288 106,934
Earnings per share - Basic (RMB) FREBF-EX
(AR®T) 0.518 0.440 0.468 0.331 0.143
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
RE=H=1=H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B--f T4 ZEZ-TH ZIZThE ZIZTTN\HF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ANREFTT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Total assets EEBE 2,785,221 2,248,861 2,089,977 1,169,922 1,015,468
Total debt BIEE 130,200 191,010 201,298 162,806 304,848
Total liabilities NGk 706,346 602,062 682,194 483,721 516,305
Equity attributable to ARAEBANEGEER
owners of the Company 2,078,875 1,646,799 1,407,783 686,201 499,163
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Financial Highlights and Summary
MBERERBE

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Br# b &

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t-HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—E--f Z—T——% ZT-TF ZEThE ZZTTN\HE

Gross profits margins — overall ERE-—EE 39.5% 38.6% 34.6% 29.3% 17.7%

Gross profits margins — cotton yarns £ H| & — 124} 15.4% 16.3% 18.5% 12.3% 13.8%
Gross profits margins EFE— K

- bedding products 56.3% 56.5% 53.2% 49.6% 29.0%
EBIT margin BR - M ERTFIE 32.0% 30.0% 28.0% 23.6% 14.6%
Net profit margins fagplp 21.6% 20.4% 22.6% 18.3% 10.1%
ROE PR R A 2 0] S 24.9% 26.7% 29.6% 36.2% 21.4%
ROA @ BED KX 18.6% 19.6% 19.9% 21.2% 10.5%
™ ROE is calculated based on profit after tax divided by total equity ) R RE S [O] 37 AR IE [ B 18 Tl LA A 2 5 &
@ ROA is calculated based on profit after tax divided by total assets @  EEOIREIRIER T E TG LA EEASE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+-HLEFE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
g —T——% ZT-TF ZTTHF —TETN\F
Trade receivables turnover Rz EER (B)"

(days) 76 72 54 40 31
Trade payables turnover Rz EER (B)?

(days) @ 22 35 35 31 42
Inventory turnover (days) @ FEE®EH(A)A 26 35 35 47 81
Current ratio (times) MBI (%) 3.4 2.9 2.4 1.4 1.3
Gearing ratio @ BEXRBELERY 4.7% 8.5% 9.6% 13.9% 30.0%
Debt-to-equity @ BIEHERC 6.3% 11.6% 14.3% 23.7% 61.1%

1)

@

3

4

®)

Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables for a given year,
divided by revenue during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade payables for a given year divided
by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

Inventory turnover is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of inventory, net of impairment, for a given year,
divided by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 aays.

Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by total assets for the
year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings.

Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by the equity for the
year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings. Equity s defined to include the non-controlling
interests.

1)

@

3

“)

®)

JE W AR 1A 2 F 1295 E F 2 Fide R A8 R 2 JEW AR
SRAGER 2 FIIEER 25 EF BN, Wk B A 365

Hit& -

JE1TBR 30 B 5 A 1715 € F R EIE RAZRZ ETAR
TAER T FHERZIETEREANZ HEK AN FHF
HAB365H & -

FEAEALETERRBRER S FEAHSZ
FEE (HIBBE) BZIEEERAZ HERLE
FL365HFE -

W F AEBAAER R F A B EARET L 100%1E -
BRZTEZEECERBDRIFRBEER -

L4 Py B AR BRI 4 PO AE 25 TN 100%41 5 » (478
ZEREF DRI TBER s> EH AT
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Financial Highlights and Summary
MBEREREE

Revenue contribution 2,401 Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Wz B Rt RATEE AEAEEF
(RMB million) 2,152 (RMB million)
(AR¥EBETT) (AR¥EBEST)
1,846
1
9
1,354
7
1,058
7 17 40
6
48
IO7‘
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Il Cotton yarns 1840
I Bedding products FR i

EBIT margin and Net profit margin

Gross profit margin O
65%  563% BRBE - RS BRI R AR

ER=

53.2%

38.6%  39.5%

29%

17.7%
0,
i 105% g a0 10.1%
o 12.3%
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
- Gross profit margin - bedding products FEF|& — K& - EBIT margin Fr#% « F1 2 ATF] =
- Gross profit margin - cotton yarns EF|& — 184} - Net profit margin 4l 7%=

<= Gross profit margin - overall FEFl| % — 252
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®/E

To all shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 to the shareholders of the Company.

The Chinese textile industry has gone through a relatively difficult time
since 2012, as witnessed by the evident slowdown of industry growth
due to a number of negative factors, including the weak demand in
the domestic and international market, the lack of growth momentum
of the overall Chinese economy, the widening gap between overseas
and domestic cotton prices and the rising production costs. Results
of the enterprises in the industry showed a downturn as compared
with last year with a marked decline in efficiency. The overall market
performance was unsatisfactory despite the gradual recovery of the
domestic market and the textile industry since September 2012.
On the other hand, the international textile market remained on a
downswing as seen from the past few years and industry competition
intensified as global economies such as Europe, the United States and
Japan lacks impetus for growth and the European debt crisis created
uncertainties.

In November 2012, we entered into a brand promotion and strategic
cooperation agreement with Choice Hotels International of the United
States, which is the fifth largest hotel chain in the world. Pursuant
to this agreement, we become the licensed supplier of high-end
branded bedding products for the CLARION Hotels, a chain of five-
star hotels owned by Choice Hotels International, and is authorized to
promote ourselves as the partner of Choice Hotels International. The
partnership demonstrates the strong corporate strength of Taifeng and
strengthens the reputation of our brand across the globe. Leveraging
on the global presence of Choice Hotels International, Taifeng can
bring premium accommodation experience to high-end consumers
from all over the world with its quality bedding products so as to take
the Taifeng brand to the global arena, thereby realizing the value of the
Taifeng brand, boosting the influence of the Group, facilitating brand
development and driving sales performance.

Looking forward, it is anticipated that the considerable difference
between overseas and domestic cotton prices will persist and labor
costs will maintain its upward trend. These will continue to exert
immense pressure on the Chinese textile industry. From a domestic
perspective, the gradual revival of the economy is expected to
contribute to the steady development and growth of the textile market.
Global economic development, though not in a satisfactory state, is
believed to bottom out and the demand from the international market
is expected to see an upturn. As economic development will remain
the top priority following the smooth transition of political power, the
Chinese economy will continue to grow under favorable conditions.
Such direction will provide enormous room for the expansion of
domestic demand. Statistics showed that the increasing personal
disposable income will create greater demand for mid-to-high-end
textile products. Overall, the Chinese textile enterprises will still face
a difficult environment in 2013. However, it is expected to see a
stabilizing and even improving economy.

BEARER :

RAABREARAREZESE MARAQRKES
IAEBEZ - T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE
MEFEE-

TE-CFUR FESBTEAERRAREN
RERR - BRI EBRERRHEBRE
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RIEARAE  MeEAB T~ B- B T —FhAMMNK
XK BEEBATISE S NE ST REMEE
BRARBRTISRIEKATEERE - S—HHE  XEE
FEERIBEEREHFZ N BEGKERE
T8 BEGEBATSNALE T BELFORK
SR E - BRF R

—E——HF+—- A BMEEREARNER
BEXERERREERERE T R HEELE
BaEHS EEXABEEKBEESEE TR
2 BB JEm i [ CLARIONS\InEE & | 1B & & i an b2
KRR HER YESEXRETIAREEE
BEREERBESERHNERETARENE
B E&ExsBRTRYEENECEE IMFTEH
RUENMENEE -FERAAEDREEIFE
BRESEEBER(CHFE BERNERME
MAERRTAERSHEEL BERAEMBSR
SRAEm BERFEMMEEE CXFENNHR
R TERMERAHEXENVRER-

BE AR BRI HSREERFERAREEN
RREHADAFE B HIRAFESE LT
B EL R RGP BT EERE KR
MR EBEN - REAEERERN  BEEAEE
FEX B Sk SR HRE FRER&IE
R-ERBEANLERRETHLZE  BREELE
BRAE BEMSERALEENEALCTFEE -
P BEEEERAGNENGESE BEEHRA
BERY RBEBEREABREENL B AERA
FREERNTSEZHE -SABEBERTERAX
RBANIKERS HXBPSESBMROTR
BTEIE M- B8R E  — T =FhESHBEEM
HENEEHERNDITLE  EERYBREE T

B 58 -
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

In the face of such tense situation, the Group managed to record a Bl BRI LIBE  AEBERE

revenue of RMB2,401.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, E——_F+_A=1+—HHBEE—"FRN X5£E
up 11.6% from last year. Gross profit amounted to RMB949.5 million, R $H & W A B A R #2,401,100,0007T » £t | 1%
representing an increase of 14.4% from last year. £11.6% : EH A AR #949,500,0007T ' bt £ F

HR14.4%

The Group attributes its impressive results during the year under SEREEFERSNRIESR EBRRE2EE

review to the outstanding performance of all of its employees as well TITHHRERBERSFHRIZR  RNAZHE L
as the loyal support of its business associates. | would like to take g2 ROMEERE HED - SHEF-TEF BT
this opportunity to express my deepest gratitude to all shareholders, BE |

suppliers, distributors, customers and employees.

Liu Qingping E
Chairman gy
28 March 2013 === BB
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBNWE DN

MARKET REVIEW

According to a report prepared by Euromonitor on the bedding
markets in China and Shandong Province in 2012, the retail volume
of bedding products in China reached RMB172.7 billion in 2012,
representing an increase of 12.1% over that of last year. The main
reason for the arrested growth was the sluggish Chinese macro
economy and real estate industry in 2012. The market shares of the
high-, medium- and low-end bedding product segments were 9.6%,
60.3% and 30.1% respectively, and the growth rates of these three
segments were 9.7%, 10.0% and 17.4%, respectively. Compared with
2011, the growth of the medium- and high-end segments fell relatively
sharply, with a corresponding decline in their market shares in the
overall bedding market. However, China Home Textile Association
announced the overall performance of the Chinese home textile
industry for the period between January and November 2012 showing
that the profits earned by 1,831 large home textile enterprises have
increased satisfactorily by 14.9% over last year. This encouraging
news indicates that the home textile industry remained the key driver
of the overall textile industry in 2012.

In 2012, Chinese textile enterprises faced three major difficulties,
which included a weak external demand, huge price difference
between domestic and foreign raw cotton, and a sharp rise in
domestic production costs. According to the statistics for 2012
published by the Chinese customs, the volume of Chinese textiles
exported to the United States and the European Union demonstrated
a downward trend as compared with 2011, while the domestic raw
cotton prices was around 45% higher than the international market
price at the end of the year. Furthermore, it was shown in a survey
conducted by the China National Textile and Apparel Council that
production costs have surged across the board. In particular, labor
costs have increased by more than 10%. These negative factors
directly led to the decline in the performance of the textile industry this
year as compared with 2011. Data published by the National Bureau
of Statistics also clearly showed that operating incomes and gross
profits of major producers in the textile industry increased slower in
2012 by approximately 13.5% and 7.5%, respectively, as compared
with 2011. Hence, the market is facing a particularly difficult situation.
However, in early 2012, China Home Textile Association promulgated
the “Framework for Home Textile Industry Development in China”
during the 12th Five-Year Plan period (the “Plan”). It anticipated that
the urbanization rate in China will increase by 4 percentage points
in the next five years, which means that the urban population will
grow by about 60 million in aggregate, or an increase of 12 million
each year. In view of the possible yearly increase in the number of
urban households caused by the planned construction of 36 million
government-subsidized homes, it is expected that market demand
for home textile and bedding products will surge in the future. In
addition, bedding products for wedding celebrations continue to be
highly sought-after. Direct market value arising from over 10 million
new marriage each year is currently a stunning RMB600 billion. There
is also an upward trend in the sales of children’s textile products.
Since the implementation of the Plan, some large and listed brands as
well as some leading textile enterprises showed a U-shaped recovery,
especially after September 2012, with a blowout growth from the
market contraction in the first half of the year. Moreover, the home
textile segment has come under the spotlight of the market.

7 45 [
BEEBN [~ 2 ——FEPARLIRER LA
RISTERE | BEER  —F——FREK L

AREEMSRBEIARK 7278 REF
HEETI1I21% HEEREM T BEEEFLN -
— N EERENEETEN TSR 5
A Rim R E R e TS EE S B A9.6% - 60.3%
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ABERE T14.9%M RIFIE K - BERAEL
EXERKEN— R BETE T —FEY

BE

TR —FhEAHBOCEMBE AR DRI
INERR - BANRREREERANBERAE
A EF-BRERPRSENSAEHFT —T——
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13.5%M7.5%  HEIgHE% E FRREEEIE  miHER
HERE  —T——F¥ FERHGHLEHE
T (PRARHITE+T R BREHRIMAE) ([
Bl|)-BEEL  RRAF WMHLKEBIRS4
EH 7 2 B & 18 h1 K 46,0008 A O -
BN 4F 15 T 321,2008 A ° B &3,6008 ERE H 1+
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBNWE DN

In view of the low industry concentration, relatively relaxed competitive
environment and high degree of product homogeneity, the bedding
industry in China remains to be a developing sector with a large
number of new players. After all, although the bedding industry was
affected by external factors in 2012 resulting in the arrested growth
and a change in the competition landscape, the bedding industry
has not yet matured or become saturated. The huge development
potential and promising prospects of the bedding market will continue
to drive industry growth in the next decade.

Certainly, the aforementioned setbacks will not fade away immediately
in 2013. In particular, coupled with the slow recovery of the world’s
major economies such as Europe, the United States and Japan,
these setbacks have made us cautious about the prospects for
external demand. As to domestic demand, with the smooth change of
government and continued policy focusing on urbanization, we expect
there to be a growth which will provide stimulus to the textile industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue was RMB2,401.1
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.6%. Revenue
generated from cotton yarn sales was RMB985.5 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 2.6% and accounting for 41.0% of the total
revenue. Revenue generated from bedding sales was RMB1,415.5
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 18.8%. Bedding
products continued to be the Group’s key products which accounted
for 59.0% of the total revenue. Currently, we are the largest bedding
product supplier in Shandong Province and the seventh largest in the
national market.

As at 31 December, 2012, the Group had a total of 1,122 stores
and counters across China, representing an increase of 420 shops/
counters as compared with last year.

The following table shows the numbers of stores and counters
(including those operated by distributors) and their changes during the
year under review:

BEATENK EBRITEDERAREY 7%
STER BZFREMAUER EmRELEER
B TERBAETH - BRARLEARITEE_Z
—EXIANFAREZEMBERBE TEHEF
RPN E  BERBME  Km1TRREAREAK
AH R ERmMBZERNERERMEANT
BHIR EARTEABF —ERTEEBERFRA
HBE 7] -

RE_FT—=F tHR="FEERETEZHRF
ARE - MERMEASZE2RTIBERERNERE
RER RAYIBERFEELEE-ZRAE
A BEERFRERBRERKRBRB R
& B R MFEBEHATEZOF L RIAGS 818
HEMHITENRERE

E 3 C1)

AEEELBTE Ko ARE2401,100,000
T EFRER11.6%  ERBYIEERS
I A 5985,500,0007T * bt 2 F R Hi 3 £2.6% -
HRBWZEMN4A1.0%  KAmEEMERABAR
#1,415,500,0007T * b & F [ Hi 15 K 18.8% ° Ik
mEBKRAAEENERER HRABKEN
50.0% - HMERIZLUEEHE —FERNKRREE
B mESEMNBERES AL

BE—_ZE——F+-_A=1+—HB1k  AEER2
BEF1,122HFE/E REE & EFEE420/H -

DIHAKEE) BB RIBIE:

31 December, 31 December,

2011 2012 Change

—E——F —E-C—F
TEHAEG—E T=HEF=E H#1E
Directly operated stores and counters EEEEERER 518 865 347
Distributors (number of stores and DHEE (DHEELCENESR 184 254 70
counters operated by distributors) RERE) (184) (257) (73)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBNWE DN

The following table shows a breakdown of the numbers of distributors,
stores and counters (including those operated by distributors) by
region as at 31 December, 2012:

SR i

&M ﬁEEI’J iﬁ?ﬁ EE)SiﬁTE(@%EE D 3
AREE)HE -

As at 31 December, 2012
BE-Z-—-—F+=-H=+—-HL

Stores and Directly

counters operated

operated by stores and

Region ith & Distributors distributors counters
DHEREN EHEEHERER

piEE  HEEREE HEEE

Eastern China ER S 140 136 547
Northern China 2l gp: A 30 32 165
Northeastern China RibH[E 25 26 102
Central China i 31 34 43
Southern China ER iR 8 6 4
Southwestern China g 13 13 2
Northwestern China [iiiiep: i’ 7 10 2
Total: HEt: 254 257 865

Notes:

Eastern China: Shandong, Jiangsu, Anhui, Zhejiang, Fujian, Jiangxi, Shanghai
Northern China: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi, Inner Mongolia

Northeastern China: Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning

Central China: Henan, Hubei, Hunan

Southern China: Guangdong, Guangxi, Hainan

Southwestern China: Sichuan, Yunnan, Guizhou, Tibet, Chongging
Northwestern China: Ningxia, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Shaanxi, Gansu

In November, 2012, we entered into a brand promotion and strategic
cooperation agreement with Choice Hotels International of the United
States, which is the fifth largest hotel chain in the world. Pursuant
to this agreement, we become the licensed supplier of high-end
branded bedding products for the CLARION Hotels, a chain of five-
star hotels owned by Choice Hotels International, and is authorized to
promote ourselves as the partner of Choice Hotels International. The
partnership demonstrates the strong corporate strength of Taifeng and
strengthens the reputation of our brand across the globe.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue increased by 11.6% to RMB2,401.1 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2012 from RMB2,152.2 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2011 due to:

° Revenue in the bedding products segment increased by 18.8%
to RMB1,415.5 million for the year ended 31 December, 2012
from RMB1,191.7 million for the year ended 31 December,
2011. Revenue in the sales of branded bedding products
recorded a growth of 23.9% to RMB1,391.6 million for the
year ended 31 December, 2012 from RMB1,123.1 million for
the year ended 31 December, 2011. The increased sales of
branded bedding products were driven principally by a 33.9%
increase in their sales volume, reflecting primarily the enhanced
ability of the Group to expand its sales networks. The effects
of which were partially offset by a 7.4% decrease in the
average realized selling price due primarily to an increase in
the percentage of branded bedding products sold as a single
piece, which in general commands a lower price and gross
profit margin as compared to products sold as a multiple-piece
set. Revenue in the sales of OEM bedding products decreased
by 65.2% to RMB23.8 million for the year ended 31 December,
2012 from RMB68.6 million for the year ended 31 December,
2011 and was primarily due to the sluggish market demand
from Europe and the United States.

° Revenue in the cotton yarns segment increased by 2.6% to
RMB985.5 million for the year ended 31 December, 2012 from
RMB960.5 million for the year ended 31 December, 2011.
All the increase was mainly due to an increase of 5.1% in the
sales volume of cotton yarns, the effects of which were partially
offset by a decrease of 2.5% in the average selling price of
cotton yarns.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWNE DT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue by

TREINIZREmME| D 2 R BHA -

products:
For the year ended 31 December,
BEt-A=1-HLEE
2012
—E-CZF —E——F
Revenue Revenue
g
(RMB’000) (% to total) (RMB’000) (% to total)
(AR# (15485 (AR (14858
i) Blt) Fr) BAt)
Bedding Products /37
Branded products mEEmR 1,391,635 58.0 1,123,140 52.2
OEM B 23,896 1.0 68,578 3.2
Sub-total It 1,415,531 59.0 1,191,718 55.4
Cotton Yarns B
Product category ERER Yarn Count XY
Coarse-count yarns a4 18 or below 18 AT 7,934 0.3 39,787 1.9
Medium-count yarns R 19 up to 28 19% £28% 16,798 0.7 80,533 3.7
Fine-count yarns w/xH 29 up to 60 20% £60% 257,242 10.7 450,187 20.9
High-count yarns ST 61 or above 61 kb £ 703,544 29.3 389,942 18.1
Sub-total It 985,518 41.0 960,449 44.6
Total @it 2,401,049 100.0 2,152,167 100.0

The Group’s bedding products are packaged in two forms: in a single
piece or in multiple-piece sets. Branded bedding products packaged
in multiple-piece sets, in general, command a higher average realized
selling price and gross profit margin than the branded bedding

products packaged in a single piece and the OEM bedding products.

The average realized selling price and gross profit margin of bedding

products are set out below:

For the year ended 31 December,

BE2t-A=t-BHLEE

AEBRBAHRASHERREL A BE U
SHERVARKZRERRZ FHEREEB R
ENE—RBAMRTLABE Z d &K m &% B hE
PR Am = o

R FHBEREEREMEHIIMT

2012 2011

—g-=f .
Gross Average Gross Average
profit realized profit realized
margin selling price margin selling price
¥4 13
EM=E ERER EME ERER
(RMB per (RMB per
(%) piece/set) (%) piece/set)
(G E (Bt &
(%) AR#%T) (%) ARKT)
Branded bedding products IR 57.0 450 58.8 486
OEM bedding products BERE R 15.4 156 19.2 98
Segment weighted average AP TS 56.3 436 56.5 396
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

The sales volume breakdown of branded bedding products is set out

below:

bR IR dn 2 SHERRARE ST

For the year ended 31 December,

BEt-A=1t-BLEE

2012 2011

—g--& —T——%

(Sales (Sales

Volume) (% to total) Volume) (% to total)
(1545 (144858
(%E8) BA) (#HE) BAt)
Multiple-piece sets SHER 2,172,462 70.2 1,916,831 83.0
Single piece BUHE 921,326 29.8 393,565 17.0
3,093,788 100.0 2,310,396 100.0

The average realized selling price and gross profit margin of cotton

yarns is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December,

BEt-A=1-BLEE

WY 2 FHBEREBEREMNEEIIWNT

2012 2011

—E-C-F% —T——F
Average Average
Gross realized Gross realized
profit margin  selling price profit margin selling price
FHER THER
ER= £E EHE £E
(RMB (RMB
(%) per tonne) (%) per tonne)
€7 €21
(%) AR¥T) (%) AE¥T)

Product category EmES Yarn count XH

Coarse-count yamns a8 18 or below 18X HAT 9.6 15,703 13.2 20,804
Medium-count yarns R4 19 up to 28 19% £28% 10.2 19,842 15.6 25,252
Fine-count yarns B 29 up to 60 29% £60% 125 22,823 15.1 30,842
High-count yarns BxXY 61 or above GBI A L 16.7 43,122 18.0 49,822
Segment weighted average 7 &bl F 15 15.4 34,056 16.3 34,894
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

COST STRUCTURE

The following sets forth a breakdown of the cost structure:

Other Production
Overheads
. HthEERX
Direct ‘IT;’abor 6.3% Raw Cotton
BHEST JR1%
6.8% 40.4%

Fuel and
Utilities
VS UNEL T

5.8%

Fabrics
Lk
40.7%

Raw material costs accounted for 81.1% of the total cost of sales for
the year ended 31 December 2012, similar to that of year ended 31
December, 2011. Fabric costs increased to 40.7% of the total cost
of sales for the year ended 31 December, 2012 from 37.4% for the
year ended 31 December, 2011 due mainly to the increase of revenue
contribution from the Group’s bedding product segment of 3.6
percentage points to 59.0%.

Fuel and

AR R 2 R AR

A ZR 48
VAT 851 A A 2R AR AR -

Other Production
Overheads
HithEEMX
Direct Labor @6.7% il Raw Cotton
HEAT R 1%
6.1% 43.2%

Utilities

6.6%

Fabrics
itk
37.4%

HE-Z——F+-_A=+—RHLFE EMH
AL ER A1 1% BEE—T——F+—
A=+ —BLFERE mRKAEEEERAK
ZEAHBBES——F+_A=+—HLHF
B2374%HAEHE—_T——F+_A=+—8
IHFEZ40.7% T BRAARNEERK R ZPLE U
HZ BB EABEEE DT ES9.0% e
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWE DN

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Gross profit increased by 14.4% to RMB949.5 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2012 from RMB829.7 million for the year ended
31 December, 2011. Overall gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December, 2012 increased slightly to 39.5% from 38.6% for the year
ended 31 December, 2011 due primarily to the increase of revenue
contribution from the Group’s bedding product segment by 3.6
percentage points to 59.0%.

Gross profit of the Group’s bedding product segment increased by
18.4% to RMB797.5 million for the year ended 31 December, 2012
from RMB673.5 million for the year ended 31 December, 2011. Gross
profit margin of the Group’s bedding product segment decreased
slightly to 56.3% for the year ended 31 December, 2012 from 56.5%
for the year ended 31 December, 2011 and was due primarily to an
increase in the percentage of branded bedding products sold as a
single piece, which in general commands a lower price and gross
profit margin as compared to products sold as a multiple-piece set.

Gross profit of the Group’s cotton yarn segment decreased by 2.6%
to RMB152.0 million for the year ended 31 December, 2012 from
RMB156.1 million for the year ended 31 December, 2011. Gross profit
margin dropped to 15.4% for the year ended 31 December 2012 from
16.3% for the year ended 31 December 2011 due primarily to the
decrease in the average selling prices and the volatility of raw cotton
price.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses recorded a loss of RMB9.8 million for the
year ended 31 December, 2012 while gains of RMB2.0 million was
recorded last year. The losses mainly comprised of RMB10.5 million in
impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables. The effects
of which were partially offset by a gain on disposal of scrap materials
of RMB1.1 million during the year.
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BEEBNWER DN

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES

Distribution and selling expenses comprise mainly of freight, import/
export declaration and delivery charges, sales commission and
wages paid to sales staff, expenses related to marketing and
promotion such as advertisements and exhibitions, retail stores and
counters running and renovation expenses, urban maintenance
and construction levy and educational surcharge. Distribution and
selling expenses increased by 3.3% to RMB136.9 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2012 as compared with RMB132.6 million in
last year. Advertising and marketing expenses recognized during
the year amounted to RMB58.2 million; and urban maintenance and
construction levy and educational surcharge amounted to RMB30.1
million; total representing 4.1% of the Group’s revenue in the sales of
bedding products and 1.3% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December, 2012; renovation costs and running expenses
for our directly-operated retail stores and counters and subsidies for
newly-opened franchised stores recognized amounted to RMB42.6
million which accounted for 31.1% of the distribution and selling
expenses.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses comprise mainly of staff cost, depreciation,
entertainment, rental, bank charges, and other sundry expenses.
Administrative expenses decreased by 10.9% to RMB31.2 million
for the year ended 31 December, 2012 from RMB32.3 million for the
year ended 31 December, 2011. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease of RMB2.9 million in expenses associated with share-based
payment transactions for the year ended 31 December, 2012.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by 28.0% to RMB18.3 million for the year
ended 31 December, 2012 from RMB14.3 million in last year. The
increase was mainly due to increased bank charges and interest
expenses in discounting of bill transactions.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense increased by 20.7% to RMB237.7 million for
the year ended 31 December, 2012 from RMB196.9 million for the
year ended 31 December, 2011. The increase was mainly due to an
increase in the taxable income for the year ended 31 December, 2012.

DHREEMX

DHEMEHERY FEREEE #EDHORE
MMITEERA HEMEAXNHEEEICIE
BErRESEEMBHREREE RS UK
TEEHAERCEHEBIAL BMEEER
MARKEEWN - DHEEEERIBEFZ
AR #1382,600,000 T2 3.3%EHE—F —=
F+ZA=+—HIEFE 2 AR %136,900,000
L FARRZEERTGHEERIAARE
58,200,0007T " kT EEZ R KA B BN N A
AR #30,100,000c (KMEXAEEBHE—_T—=
FrZA=ZT+—HLEFERDBHERZI AR KB
Wa1.3%) BEETEEH R EERFAK AL
ERTUARFABTCEER @S AARE
42,600,0007T 57 S5 R SHE BIZ31.1% ©

TERBIX

TR ETERFEIRS WE EEE-M
& ROTKEREMEERI THRAXHE
BT —F+_A=Z+—BHULEFEZARE
32,300,000 L10.9% 2 HE T ——F + =
A=+—H1EFE 2z AR®31,200,0007T ° & &
FERHARNEBE_E—=-F+=-A=+—HI
FEHALNRMNERZZE@B AR AR
2,900,000 T AT 2 °

& A

BEE K AHEF 2 AR®14,300,0000T £ F
280%EHE_TE——F+_A=+—HLFE
Z AR ¥18,300,0007T - BRI EFE B R ARENE
ZEISGZBRTERRF SR M-

FrE®ipx

FrisfmMYmEz—_E——F+-_A=+—8H
IEEE 2 AR #196,900,0007T 3 1120.7 % = &
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Working Capital Management EEESERE
The following table sets forth selected operating efficiency ratios for TREYAEE 2 LB ELE R =
the Group:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December, 31 December,
2012 2011
BZE HZE
—B-=F —E——F
a7 e s M S e A S (e =
FE FE
Trade receivables turnover (days)” FEWER RS H (/) 76 72
Trade payables turnover (days)? FERFASHE (R)@ 22 35
Inventory turnover (days)® FEHEER (/)P 26 35
Notes: Kiaz -

(1) Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables for a given year,
divided by revenue during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

(2) Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade payables for a given year divided
by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

(8) Inventory turnover is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of inventory, net of impairment, for a given year,
divided by cost of sales during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

Average trade receivable turnover increased to 76 days for the
year ended 31 December, 2012 from 72 days for the year ended
31 December, 2011, which was primarily due to the increase in
proportion of sales to our bedding products distributors to which we
granted longer credit periods.

Average trade payables turnover and average inventory turnover
decreased to 22 days and 26 days respectively for the year ended
31 December, 2012 from 35 days for the year ended 31 December,
2011, which was primarily due to a lower inventory level maintained at
the year end date.
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EEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following table sets forth liquidity and capital adequacy ratios
for the years:

RBESRELXER
TREBIATFEZRDESREATRRL X

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December, 31 December,

2012 2011

BZE HE

—E——fF —T——F

e =PElI= e N = S Sl N

FE FE

Gearing” BREFEY 4.7% 8.5%

Debt-to-equity? BIRH =P 6.3% 11.6%

Current ratio B L 2 3.4 timesfZ 2.9 timesfZ
Notes: B

©) Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by total assets for the () UENEHEAERENEELBETIAI00%TE

year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings.

2) Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by the equity for the
year and multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and
non-current borrowings.

The gearing ratio and the debt-to-equity ratio decreased to 4.7% and
6.3% respectively for the year ended 31 December, 2012 from 8.5%
and 11.6% for the year ended 31 December, 2011. The decrease in
the gearing ratio and debt-to-equity ratio were principally due to the
increase in the total assets and equity respectively.

BEZEERERDRIERDEER -

@ AFAERELERFARERTIAI00%5E - FER
ZEZBERBIIERBER-

ERBEHEREEEELEDABES
E——F+_A=+—HIFEZ85%K%11.6%
TREHE_ZT——F+_A=+—BLEFEZ
47%%6.3% - BABEL R R BB B ET
KREZRHMREERERERY AR
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CASH FLOW

The current ratio improved slightly to 3.4 times for the year ended
31 December, 2012 and was mainly attributable to a higher bank
balances and cash position and a lower bank borrowing level
maintained at the year end date.

RERg

BE-ZE——F+=-A=+—HILEE K&
RO ER3AME T EREAFLEB ZRITE
B EIBEKFERE  MIRTTEEKFERIEK-

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December, 31 December,
2012 2011
BZE HE
—®——F B
sine=l = Ctpe EW AR e i e Y
FE FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
Net cash from operating activities K ESEA RS )T 548,830 287,469
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities BEES (BA) EE2
R F5E (20,313) (71,990)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities MmEES (BA) EE2
R )F5E (165,137) (228,618)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT+ZA=+—B2H&R
ReEHEY 1,205,905 842,525

Net cash generated from operating activities increased to RMB548.8
million for the year ended 31 December, 2012 from RMB287.5
million for the year ended 31 December, 2011, was the result of the
following:

- operating cash flows before movements in working capital of
RMB828.5 million;

- a decrease in cash resulting from changes in working capital
of RMB84.4 million, including an increase in trade and other
receivables and prepayment of RMB56.1 million, a decrease
in inventories level of RMB31.0 million and a decrease in trade
and other payables and accruals of RMB59.2 million;

- PRC enterprise income tax and withholding tax on dividend
paid of RMB195.3 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended 31 December,
2012 was RMB20.3 million mainly due to an increase in pledged bank
deposits of RMB26.2 million.

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended 31 December,
2012 was RMB165.1 million, including primarily dividend payments
of RMB86.0 million, interest payment of RMB18.3 million, and a net
decrease in bank borrowings of RMB60.8 million.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the assets pledged as at 31 December, 2012 are set out in
note 17.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December,
2012 (2011: nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries were conducted
mainly in the PRC with revenues and expenses of the Group’s
subsidiaries denominated in RMB. Some of the Group’s cash and
bank deposits, including proceeds from the Group’s initial public
offering, were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars or US Dollars. Any
significant exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong Dollars or US
Dollars against each entity’s respective functional currency may have a
financial impact to the Group.

As at 31 December, 2012, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) considered the Group’s foreign exchange risk to be
insignificant. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December, 2012, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 5,384 employees (2011: 5,384). Staff costs for the year
ended 31 December, 2012 (including Directors’ remuneration in the
form of salaries and other allowances) were approximately RMB120.7
million (2011: RMB112.6 million).

The remuneration of the employees of the Group includes salaries,
bonuses and other fringe benefits. The Group has different rates of
remuneration for different employees to be determined based on their
performance, experience, position and other factors in compliance
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBNWE DN

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds (after deduction of related issuance costs) from
the Company’s initial public offering amounted to approximately
RMB383.1 million, equivalent to HK$435.3 million. The net proceeds
were partially applied up to 31 December, 2012 with the proposed
applications set out in the Prospectus, as follows:

—  Approximately RMB128.7 million (2011: RMB128.7 million) was
used for the expansion of production facilities.

—  Approximately RMB254.4 million (2011: RMB160.0 million)
was used for the enhancement of sales operations and brand
building.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES
Prospects and Future Plans

We expect our business will undergo a relatively steady growth in
2013. The focuses of our business plan in 2013 are to achieve our
annual business targets, promote the Taifeng home textile brand as
a reputable household name in China, enhance our products’ market
influence and increase their added value, as well as provide great
quality, high-tech, brilliantly designed, finely made and reasonably
priced home textile products to our target consumers.

The Board plans to conduct a review on the Group’s assets
composition within this financial year with a view to reflecting the value
and potential of each of the different business segments of the Group
i.e. cotton yarns and bedding products. In addition, subject to a viable
feasibility study and advice from consultants, the Board may consider
carrying out a possible asset and/or business reorganization. The
Group will issue further announcement to inform the shareholders if
there is any progress on this matter.

Brand building

We will continue to implement our multi-brand strategy, and will
market our diverse brands for the target consumer groups based on
the characteristics, development and requirements of their specific
markets. A comprehensive and flexible mix with multiple brands
ranging from low- to high-end product segments will be established
SO as to capitalize on the brand reputation and equity of the Taifeng
brand as a “Chinese Well-Known Mark”. We will also pay more
attention to market changes in order to adjust the position of our
brands, set the direction for our marketing and product design teams,
cater to the target consumers and introduce new ideas to Taifeng’s
brand culture. With better and unified brand positioning, our flexible
brand structure will leverage our key Taifeng brand across various
sub-brands with different focuses such as higher sales volume or
higher profit margin.
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Product development

The Group will carry out more research on functional textile products.
We aim to develop and introduce high-tech products that are, for
example, anti-bacterial, anti-mosquito, moisture absorbing and
temperature adjusting, and use new healthcare, smooth, comfortable
and functional fabrics and yarns in our products. With effective
marketing, new products will be rolled-out quickly ahead of all else
so as to enhance their profitabilities and to satisfy the needs for
better quality of life and sleep. In particular, we will respond quickly
to changes in medium-end and low-end markets while reducing
our production costs so as to capture the low-income group with
products of affordable prices that cater to their needs.

Extension of distribution channels

In 2013, northern China will remain as the focus of the expansion
of our distribution channels. Capitalizing on our edge in northern
China, we shall establish ourselves as the leading brand in this region.
Our marketing team will make extra efforts to attract distributors,
especially through large or small regional investment fairs, in order to
achieve our expansion goal of setting up 350 new stores. We will also
establish model stores in the region. We plan to gradually increase
the proportion of franchisees while reducing the proportion of our
directly operated shops and counters in our business profile. Product
warranty, money guarantee and marketing, logistics and human
resources support provided to large distributors will be strengthened
with the aim of boosting their businesses. In addition, we will step
up our effort in the field of group-sales by satisfying various needs of
group-buyers. Our investment in electronic business platforms will also
be enlarged so as to enter nation-wide e-Commerce platforms and
expand our sales through electronic means.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Qingping, aged 59, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2009.
Mr. Liu is responsible for strategic planning, business development
and overall management of the Group. Mr. Liu has more than 20
years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Liu has been awarded
numerous recognitions and honours in the past. In 1995, he was
awarded “Outstanding Quality Manager for Textile Industry of the
Shandong Province (LR E S B EXAEFSE2EIR TEE) " by
Textile Industry Bureau of Shandong Province ([LIH & 47 4% T %52)
and Association of Quality Management Textile Industry of Shandong
Province (IR ##E = B2 1B E ) . In 2003, he was recognized as a
Model Worker of Shandong Province by the Shandong Province ( [
B L EIEE) by the People’s Government of Shandong Province ( L]
HA AR . In 2004, he was awarded (i) “Entrepreneur with Good
Faith of Shandong Province (ILER& FIEE%EZK ) " by The Committee
for Credit Rating of Shandong Province and Shandong Province Credit
Rating Company (L&A EE2FREZEeRILEEEETRER
Al) and (i) Award for Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Textile Industry
of Shandong Province ( L ER 74> 2 R8I % #2) by Office of Textile
Industry of Shandong Province (LI E & #5 4 T #2 2= ) and The
Association of Textile Enterprises Management of Shandong Province
(ILE#HEHPEEERE) . In 2005, he was awarded “Outstanding
Ideological and Political (Enterprise Culture) Operator in Textile Industry
of Shandong Province ( IR & ##1THEF BREBUE  EXEER
T &%) by Office of Textile Industry of Shandong Province ( [LIE &
4k TN E) and Political Research Committee of Textile Workers
of Shandong Province (LI B & #7458 THH =) . In 2006, he was
awarded (i) “50 People Promoting the Globalization of PRC Brands
in 2006 (20063 &) A B an k2 B B {E50A ) 7 by PRC Organization
Committee of the 14th World Productivity Congress ( 5 + PO f& tt
REENARePEMAMEZE L) and (i) “Outstanding Operator and
Manager of Shandong Province (LR EAEFKEEEE)" by
Committee for Economic and Trade of Shandong Province ( Il 5 & £
EZESHZEE). In 2007, he was recognised () “An Excellent Leading
Individual in Outstanding Quality Control of the Textile Industry in the
PRC (ZEI#MITEEREEEE /N AEHEMEEE) " by China
National Textile and Apparel Council (R BI#%7 4% T 2132 ) and China
Trade Union of Financial and Commercial Workers, Light Industry and
Textile Workers, Tobacco Industry Workers ( #7 B B Z 8l 47 @ H T & )
and (i) “Model Worker in Business Sector in Countrywide ( % B 4 7%
R ERE) " by Ministry of Personnel of the People’s Republic of
China (FFZE AR K FE A FEB) and the Ministry of Commerce of the
People’s Republic of China (A A R&EFMBEFHEEE) . In 2010, he
was awarded “Award for Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Textile Industry
of Shandong Province ( IR #45% > 2 K BI2£ #2) ” by The Association
of Textile Industry of Shandong Province (LU & 474 T ¥ th<)
and The Association of Textile Enterprises Management of Shandong
Province (ILER# & EEHE) . In 2011, he was awarded “Green
Campaign, 2011 Top 10 Leading Figures of the PRC Economy ( 4k
) e2011HR B & EEA AY) " by China Economic Development
Forum Committee (FF Bl EEREHBIEZEZEE). In 2012, he was
named as an “Outstanding Patent Inventor of Laiwu City (3 ZE T &5
HFIZERAA) " by the People’s Government of Laiwu City (26&m AR
X ) . Mr. Liu is a senior economist. He obtained a doctorate degree
in business administration from American Liberty University in 2005.
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Mr. Li Dengxiang, aged 52, was appointed as the Vice-chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Company on 18 November
2009. Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience in the textile industry and
is responsible for overseeing the production, quality and operation
management of the Group. Mr. Li obtained various recognitions
and awards in the past. He was awarded “Golden Bridge Prize of
Technology market of Shandong Province ([l 5 & # i i1 35 &l %
$©1548)” by Golden Bridge Prize Award Committee of Shandong
Province (IURE KM TSR KB REBHZEZE §)in 2005 and
2007. In 2007, he was also recognized as an “Outstanding Young to
Middle Age Technology Worker of the Textile Industry in the PRC ( &
BiB#h T2 EFR FFRHEZIESE) " by China Textile Engineering
Somety(@l%%lﬁ?—é\. . Mr. Li is an engineer. He obtained a
professional certificate in business administration from the Shandong
Industrial University (now merged as Shandong University) in 1998 and
a doctorate degree in business administration from American Liberty
University in 2005.

Ms. Qi Tongli, aged 50, was appointed an executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2009 and is responsible for capital
operation management of the Group. Ms. Qi has more than 20 years
of experience in the textile industry. She was awarded “Scientific
Technology Advancement Award” (FIZ R {i7# 54%) in 1998 and
2000 by The Assessment Committee for Scientific Technology
Advancement Award of Shandong Province (Il 5 & & 22 5 fif i
##EFER B E€)and The Assessment Committee for Scientific
Technology Advancement Award of Laiwu City ( 3 %E i F} B2 4% il #
#1875 % B € ) respectively. In 2003, she was awarded “Scientific
Technology Award of Shandong Province ”( Ll 3R & £} £ & fif 48)
by The Assessment Committee for Scientific Technology Award of
Shandong Province (IL R AR BRI RFELZE =) . She was
recognized as a “Model Outstanding Female Worker and Contribution
of Shandong Province (IR & Z B TEINZ#ZF LX) and was
awarded “Award for Improvement of Living Standard in Shandong
Province (& REE 4 & HEE ) " in 2007 by the General Labour Union
of Shandong Province (IUE&A 4 T2 ) . Ms. Qi is a senior engineer.
She obtained a certificate in textile industry from Jinan School of
Textile Industry, a certificate in business administration from the
Shandong Industrial University (now merged as Shandong University)
in 1998 and a doctorate degree in business administration from
American Liberty University in 2005.

Mr. Liu Chunwei, aged 45, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and was appointed an executive Director of the Company on 18
November 2009. Mr. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in the
textile industry and is responsible for overseeing the sales, production
and full operation management of the Group. Mr. Liu received the
“Award for Improvement of Living Standard in Shandong Province ( &

REIELEHEE) " in 2001 by the General Labour Union of Shandong
Provmce(lﬂﬁé #T &), and “Model Worker in National Textile
Industry ( 2 B4 4% T4 @J’fﬁ%&) ” in 2010 by Human Resources and
Social Security Department, and China National Textile and Apparel
Council ( ATEBRMEEREDRPELHHETERE) . He obtained a
certificate in textile industry from the Shandong Textile College in 1988
and a doctorate degree in business administration from American
Liberty University in 2005.
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Mr. Zou Shengzhong, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 18 November 2009. Mr. Zou has more
than 20 years of experience in the textile industry and is responsible
for overseeing the sales and operation management of the Group.
Mr. Zou is a senior engineer. He graduated from Changwei School
of Textile Industry in 1983 and he obtained a certificate in electricity
engineering from the Shandong TV University in 1987 and a doctorate
degree in business administration from American Liberty University in
2005.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kin Sang, aged 61, is currently the sole proprietor of
Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors and Notaries. He was
appointed an independent non-executive Director of the Company on
18 November 2009. He has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1982. He was admitted as a Notary Public in 1997 and as a
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2000. He is currently a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Laws degree in 1979. Mr.
Chan is also a director of the following public listed companies:
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Listed Company Stock Code Place of Listing Role

EmREH IR 431X 5% Lrivith B 3%

People’s Food Holdings Limited P05 Singapore Independent Non-executive Director

AZRmBERER AR #rhn3g BYFATES

Luxking Group Holdings Limited L34 Singapore Independent Non-executive Director

HWESBEEBRBRRAA N3 BYEMITES

Combest Holdings Limited 8190 Hong Kong Non-executive Director

BREZERBR AR Ep FEHMITES

China Precious Metal Resources 1194 Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director
Holdings Co., Limited

FEECBERERERAA B BYFNTES

Pan Hong Property Group Limited P36 Singapore Non-executive Director

NEHWEEEBRRAR N FEHITES

United Pacific Industries Limited 176 Hong Kong Non-executive Director

EATEBRAA Epi FEHITES

Tianjin TEDA Biomedical 8189 Hong Kong Independent Non-executive Director
Engineering Co., Ltd.

REREEMBESBTIERMHBRAA B BYFNTES

For the past 3 years, Mr. Chan also held directorships in the following
Hong Kong listed companies: (a) Dynamic Energy Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 578); Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
767); (c) Zhongda International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 909);
(d) Mayer Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1116) and (e) Ming Kei
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8239) and in the following Singapore
listed company: (a) Sunray Holdings Limited (Stock Code: S38).
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Mr. Li Yuchun, aged 65, is a retired senior bank official. Mr. Li is an
economist and has more than 20 years of experience in the banking
industry and financial management. He is currently an independent
director of Shandong Inspur Software Co. Ltd (Stock Code: SHA
600756), a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr.
Li was appointed an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 18 November 2009. He graduated from People’s
Liberation Army School of Sailors Politics ( 7 B A R B E S EBUA
B3B3 ) in professional political works in 1986.

Mr. Dai Shunlin, aged 70, is a deputy director of China Institute of
Textile Planning and a retired senior engineer. He was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 18 November
2009. Mr. Dai has more than 40 years in the textile industry. He
graduated from the textile engineering department of Wuxi School
of Light Industry with a certificate in professional machine knitting in
1966.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang Qige, aged 44, joined the Group in 2001 and is currently
the secretary to the Board of Directors of Shandong Taifeng Textile
Co., Ltd (“Shandong Taifeng”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Mr. Huang obtained a certificate in physics from Shandong
Mineral College ( LI E0) in 1989, and a doctoral degree in
business administration from American Liberty University in 2005. In
2008, he finished his studies of accountancy with Shandong School of
Economics. He has more than 8 years of experience as secretary to
the Board of directors.

Mr. Zou Shengcheng, aged 44, joined the Group in 2003. He has
more than 16 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Zou is the
vice general manager of Shandong Taifeng and is responsible for the
products development and technology of the Group. He graduated
from Shandong School of Textile Industry with a bachelor’s degree in
textile engineering in 1992.
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Mr. Geng Zhensheng, aged 47, joined the Group in 2001. He has
more than 20 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Geng is
the vice general manager of Shandong Taifeng and is responsible
for the production of the Group. He completed secondary school
education in Laiwu City in 1982.

Ms. Geng Yanling, aged 40, joined the Group in 2001. She is a
certified tax planner in the PRC. She had been in the textile industry
since 1992. Ms. Geng is the vice general manager of Shandong
Taifeng and is responsible for the finance of the Group. Ms. Geng
has been awarded the Model Worker by the Laiwu City People’s
Government and an Outstanding Person by the Laiwu City Economic
and Trade Commission (EM LB E 5 Z E®)in 2008. She
obtained a certificate in economics from Harbin Polytechnic University
in 2008.

Mr. Zhang Wengsheng, aged 50, is the general manager of
the home textile operation and joined the Group in 2011. He is
responsible for the operational management of the domestic sales of
home textiles. Mr. Zhang graduated from Nankai University in Tianjin
in 1991 and obtained a master’s degree in history. He held senior
management positions at renowned home textile companies such
as Luolai and was a senior consultant at bS5 AL ZAER
A 7], with broad-based experience in management and marketing
strategies in the home textile industry.

Mr. Pang Wai Hong, aged 48, is the the company secretary of
the Company. He is responsible for the statutory compliance and
corporate governance matters of the Company. Mr. Pang is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He holds a
Master of Science (Finance) from the National University of Ireland and
a Master of Lighting degree from Queensland University of Technology.
Mr. Pang has more than 20 years of financial and auditing experience.
Prior to joining the Group in 2009, he was the chief financial officer
and company secretary of People’s Food Holdings Limited (stock
code: P05), a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report, together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December, 2012.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 21 May, 2009 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. In preparation for the listing of
the Shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(the “Stock Exchange”), the Group underwent a series of corporate
reorganisation procedures and the Company became the holding
company of the Group since 18 August, 2009.

Details of the reorganisation were set out in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” on page 4 to 5 of Appendix VII (Statutory and
General Information) in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 May,
2010 (the “Prospectus”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 June, 2010 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and distribution
of quality cotton yarns and bedding products in China. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in note 1 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 56 of this annual report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.052 per share for the year ended 31 December, 2012 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 11 July, 2013. The final dividend is expected to be paid
on or around 26 July, 2013.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 19 June, 2013 to 21
June, 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the annual general meeting to be held on 21 June, 2013,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on 18 June, 2013.

The register of members will be closed from 9 July, 2013 to 11 July,
2013, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the abovementioned final
dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 8 July, 2013.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds (after deduction of related issuance costs) from
the Company’s initial public offering amounted to approximately
RMB383,100,000, equivalent to HK$435,300,000 The net proceeds
were applied up to 31 December, 2012 with the proposed
applications set out in the Prospectus, as follows:

—  Approximately RMB128.7 million (2011: RMB128.7 million) was
used for the expansion of production facilities.

—  Approximately RMB254.4 million (2011: RMB160.0 million)
was used for the enhancement of sales operations and brand
building.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years are set out on page 5 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December, 2012, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer accounted for 66.3% and
16.2% respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

For the year ended 31 December, 2012, the Group’s purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers and the largest supplier
accounted for 76.1% and 21.7% respectively of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
who, which to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

LISTING OF THE SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

The shares of the Company have been successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since 11 June, 2010. The total number
of shares of the Company in issue upon listing was 1,000,000,000
shares.

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital
of the Company are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Since the Listing Date, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES
Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the Group

are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
58 of this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, all reserves
(including share premium and retained earnings) of the Company may
be applied for payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. At 31
December, 2012, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1,521,356,000.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December,
2012 are set out in notes 23 to 24 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Group had no significant events after the balance sheet date.
DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Qingping (appointed on 21 May 2009)
Mr. Li Dengxiang (appointed on 18 November 2009)
Ms. Qi Tongli (appointed on 21 May 2009)

Mr. Liu Chunwei (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Mr. Zou Shengzhong (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kin Sang (appointed on18 November 2009)

Mr. Li Yuchun (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Mr. Dai Shunlin (appointed on 18 November 2009)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Each of the Executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to
termination by either party giving the other not less than 3 months’
prior written notice or such shorter period as both parties may agree.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, will
retire from office by rotation and every Directors shall be subject to
retirement at an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.
Accordingly, Mr. Liu Chunwei, Mr. Zou Shengzhong and Mr. Chan Kin
Sang shall retire by rotation at the AGM. All the retiring Directors are
eligible for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities, performance
of the Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) during the year ended 31 December, 2012 were within the
following bands:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December, 2012 and the date of this annual report, the
interests and short positions of the Directors and the Chief Executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules are as follows:

Long Position

(a) Long position - Interests in the Company

EERTHABRERARG - HERD R
BEEBERKR

R-ZZE——F+_A=+—BRAFRAH K
PRIBEBRITRAHN AR R REEEEE (E
EREBFRBEGEG ([FHFRBEEKED])EXV
B0) 2B AR REF T A LSRR IERE
F R HEAE P FE3521678 T 17 2 Bt - skiRiE
ETTRBIM R T FTE E BT AETHETESR
SHVEAESTR ([EEFA]) g ARA 6 KT
ZRBRARIMT

wRE
(a) HE-RELAZELZE

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital of

Name of director Capacity ordinary shares the Company

HAEARE BT

BEEpnE &4 EERHE RAET DL

Mr. Liu Qingping (7) Interest in controlled corporations 555,000,000 55.50%
BIEFEAEN) M IEHEE 2

Beneficial owner 16,234,000 1.62%

BEamlEA A

(1) Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be indirectly interested in
555,000,000 Shares, ie. 565.5% of the issued capital of the
Company, through his direct interests in Harvest Sun Enterprises
Limited under the SFO.
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(b) Long position - Interests in an associated corporation

36

(b) #E-RIGE%E 2 #

Approximate
percentage of

holding of

the total share

capital of

Type the associated

Name of director Associated corporation of interests corporation

BEHBEER

2 AR A

EEnE L RERER BHBED L

Mr. Li Dengxiang Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 14.60%
FEFILE EREFERARAQF EREEA

Mr. Liu Chunwei Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 8.60%
Blmmrst ERERARADA EnEEA

Ms. Qi Tongli Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 13.20%
TREZL ERTEARAA EmEAA

Mr. Zou Shengzhong Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 7.50%
BEBRILE EREEARAA EnEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December, 2012, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following person (other than a Director and Chief Executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

TERRRKRG HERORES2ERZR
RE

R_E——F+—_A=+—HB BRESBHRH AT
AL (TEERRRESZRITEREE) RARQRZ
B HHERGREFTHEREESFRBEK
BIEXVE 2R FE3D E 2 R E AN R HEE -
R BN AR B R IR 5 M HA B & 5] 553361678
%ﬁﬁZ%Aﬂﬂﬁz% SEARIAT

Percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
Name Capacity ordinary shares the Company
HARLDTE BT
mE BB 54 ZERHE RAET DL
Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited (7) Registered and beneficial owner, 555,000,000 55.50%
benefioiary of a trust
BERCERRAF() BLMEREEA EEXHEA
Fu Sun Development Limited (2) Reglstered and beneficial owner 75,000,000 7.50%
EEERARRAEZ) EREREREBA
Mr. Liu Qingping (3) Interest in controlled corporation and 571,234,000 57.12%
beneficial owner
BIEFEEG REXEHEEZ EZREREAA
Superior Delight Limited (4) Reglstered and beneficial owner 170,768,000 17.08%
EEARARMA Bk EREAA
Mr. Huang Quan Interest in a controlled corporation 170,768,000 17.08%
BEREA MNEEGNEE 2 s
(1)  Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited is owned as to 48.60% by Mr. Liu (1) EBLEERNGIHEEFILLHEFLI8.60%21E
Qingping and therefore, Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be interested in A B FEELE W IERERPEERI G
480,000,000 Shares held directly by Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited. E .2 480,000,000 B 15 B 17 o
(2)  Fu Sun Development Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Qingping and Q) ELEBEERANGIBHLEFAELEDERES  FU
therefore Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be interested in 75,000,000 IR1EE 5 [ I EME51 » B o6 A B ER & 4 %
Shares held by Fu Sun Development Limited under the SFO. RBERAR GIFEH,275,000,00088 817 F HEH #E2S o
(3)  Mr. Liu Qingping is deemed to be indirectly interested in 555,000,000 B) RIFZELRIEIRA ZIEFFLEWIEIEEBR
Shares, ie. 55.50% of the issued capital of the Company through his EEIPFEERIGLZ B EEZFEERE55,000,000
direct interests in Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited under the SFO. Mr. Liu BRER 15 (B K 2\ 5] B 2277 AR 7K65.60% ) 0 HE & #E
Qingping owns 16,234,000 Shares, ie. 1.62% on his personal interests. o B B F 5E £ R16,234,00088 BZ 17 (BI1.62% )
FHEF Nz -
(4)  Superior Delight Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Quan and Mr. 4) FEERAGIHESHEELESEHS FHU  RIEZE

Huang Quan is therefore deemed to be interested in 170,768,000 Shares
held by Superior Delight Limited under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December, 2012, no person,
other than the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’
Interests And Short Positions In Shares, Underlying Shares And
Debentures” above, had any interest or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group,
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

No contracts of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of year or at
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors has interests in any business which directly or indirectly
competes, or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group mainly determines staff remuneration in accordance
with the qualification, years of experience, performance of individual
employee and the salary trend in PRC and will be reviewed regularly.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
where the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A resolution for the re-appointment of
Deloitte as the Company’s auditor will be proposed at the Company’s
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Qingping

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March, 2013
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THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) (effective from 1 April
2012) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance. The directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider that the Company has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the
financial year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance
of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures are
in place to protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

This report outlines the principles and the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
financial year and up to the date of this annual report (the “Period
Under Review”).

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Directors’ Securities
Transactions (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Directors are reminded of their obligations under the
Model Code on a regular basis. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Period
Under Review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Functions of the Board

The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
strategies, financial objectives, annual budget and investment
proposals of the Group and to assume the responsibilities of
corporate governance of the Group. The Board delegates the
authority and responsibility for implementing day-to-day operations,
business strategies and management of the Group’s businesses
to the executive Directors, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of
the Group. The executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experiences and expertise to the Company.

As at 31 December, 2012 and at the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Qingping (Chairman)

Mr. Li Dengxiang

Ms. Qi Tongli

Mr. Liu Chunwei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zou Shengzhong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kin Sang
Mr. Li Yuchun
Mr. Dai Shunlin

The biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 25 to 28
of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of
the Directors has any other financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Each of the executive Directors of the Company entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the Listing and may only be terminated
in accordance with the provisions of the service contract after the first
year of service of the Director by either party giving to the other not
less than three months’ prior notice in writing.
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The Company has issued an appointment letter to each of the non-
executive Directors and Independent non-executive Directors of the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of the
Listing unless terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than two months prior notice in writing.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should not be performed by the same individual.
To ensure a balance of power and authority, the Company has
appointed Mr. Liu Qingping as Chairman and Mr. Liu Chunwei as
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Liu Qingping and Mr. Liu Chunwei are both
founders of the Group and possess rich knowledge and experience of
the textile industry. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board and ensuring that all material issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for the management of the day-to-
day operations of the Group’s business and the implementation of the
approved strategies of the Group. In addition, each executive Director
is responsible for the management of the different functions of the
business of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three independent non-executive Directors representing
more than one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive Directors, one of the independent non-executive Director,
Mr. Li Yuchun has appropriate related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors the
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation, considers all
independent non-executive Directors independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the date of the Listing, subject
to termination by either party giving the other not less than 3 months’
prior written notice or such shorter period as both parties may agree.
In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, will
retire from office by rotation and every Directors shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.
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Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Company adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for
executive Directors regularly throughout the year and at least four
meetings a year for both executive and non-executive Directors.
The Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-level
decision on a particular matter is required. The company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) will assist the Chairman to
prepare the agenda of the meeting and each Director may request to
include any matters in the agenda. Generally, at least 14 days notice
would be given for the regular meeting by the Company. The Directors
will receive details of agenda items for decision at least 3 days before
each Board meeting. All Directors will be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and upon reasonable request,
the Directors will be able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The Company
Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the procedures of the Board
meetings are observed and providing the Board with opinions on
matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the Board
meetings. All minutes of Board meetings were recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.

During the Period Under Review, the Board convened 4 board
meetings. Details of the attendance of Directors are as follows:

EZEEBRESEER

ARBERM—BER RTESNEEFEE
HBETESFEeR MUTRFEATESRRESF
RAOBTOREH -BERAEEFTENX—FEH
ERER EFSTEREMKREHEE A2
AZrRWE ([REWE]) BHpETERESH
ZiE MEBEFHABRBEASTEMAREZ
Mo ARA]—MRRBITEREZAMED148 F
BE-BEERRBTSEZTEEZEL3AAKE
AR ARIFELRE -MBEZEKESKNE
RABTTERE YHE/EERT  AHRAERBR
SKBEUEXER BERAAREAE - 2RWE
RERRSESFETESS SRR YEST
EXZeeREFcEERESSRHUEA-EF
EEELTAEERLE CHACBESTEME
B2 ERPZEBZRE -

REEHEN EZSERT4AREZTEEH-B
BEEZHEFBENOT:

No. of

Board meetings

attended/held

HE BT

Name of Directors EENR EESEERY

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Liu Qingping (Chairman) BIETRE (F/E) 4/4

Mr. Li Dengxiang TEHELE 4/4

Ms. Qi Tongli JTRIBZ 4/4

Mr. Liu Chunwei (Chief Executive Officer) Bl (7T A4EZ) 4/4

Mr. Zou Shengzhong BEBRKE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BAENITES

Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR {8 A 5 A 4/4

Mr. Li Yuchun TEREE 4/4

Mr. Dai Shunlin RIBEH T & 4/4

CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

During the Period Under Review, Directors are provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to enable the board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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During the Period Under Review, the Company has also organized
a briefing sessions conducted by Messrs. DLA Piper Hong Kong for
all the Directors of the Company and all the Directors attended such
briefing sessions. The briefing sessions covered topics including the
new Corporate Governance Code, the disclosure of price sensitive
information and the latest development regarding the Listing Rules.

REBEHE ARRNELSE2BEETEN —(EH
BMESMEEMIRZIENE 2RBEEHEY
FeRARENERETECENEEE AT B
BERBREMR MR Z&HER-

Attending
Briefings and seminars,
updates on workshops or
the business, exhibitions
operation and relevant to
corporate the business
governance or directors’
matters duties
HEREEBRRES
FH¥EK BER BEMEEEZ
TEEREEZ MRS TEH
BN REHER XRE
Executive Directors HWITES
Mr. Liu Qingping (Chairman) RIEFEE (£/E) 4 4
Mr. Li Dengxiang TEHELEE v 4
Ms. Qi Tongli TREZL v/ v
Mr. Liu Chunwei Bt v v
Mr. Zou Shengzhong BB AE v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYIEMITES
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BoR {2 A 5 A v v
Mr. Li Yuchun FEFRE v v
Mr. Dai Shunlin B EAR S & v v
COMPANY SECRETARY REWE

Mr. Pang Wai Hong was appointed as the Company Secretary in
2009. His biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in the
annual report. During the Period Under Review, Mr. Pang attended
relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours pursuant to
new Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE AND
INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the
Directors. Throughout the Period Under Review, no claim had been
made against the Directors and the officers of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
Composition

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three members,
all are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yuchun
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Mr. Dai Shunlin. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are:

(@) to consider and make recommendation to the Board on (i) the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor;
(i the audit fee and the terms of engagement of the external
auditor; and (jii) any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor, taking into account the quality and rigour of the audit, the
quality of the audit service provided, the auditing firm’s quality
control procedures, relationships between the external auditors
and the Company, and the independence of the auditors. The
external auditors appointed by the Company shall be approved
by the Shareholders at the AGM;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards issued from time to time
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, to
discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences,
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations,
and to ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

(c) to develop and implement policy on engaging external auditor
(which includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally) to supply non-audit services, to
report to the board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed;

(d) to act as the principal representative of the Company with the

external auditor and to monitor the relationship between the
Company and the external auditor
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to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company and
the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report and
quarterly financial highlights (or quarterly reports if prepared
for publication), and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. In reviewing these reports before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

()  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualification;

(v) compliance with accounting standards, and

(vij compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements;

in conducting the review described in (d) above, members of the
Committee:

(i)  should liaise with the Board and Senior Management and
meet with the auditors at least twice a year; and

(i) consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and accounts and
must give due consideration to any matters that have
been raised by the Company’s staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function, compliance
officer(s) or auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. The discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programme and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control
matter as delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

to review the Company’s statement on its internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;
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(k) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
programme, ensure co-ordination between the internal and
external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company;

()  to consider any findings of major investigations of internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(m) to review the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(n) to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

(o) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(p) to report to the Board on the matters set out in paragraph C.3.3
of the CG Code (as amended from time to time);

(@) to review the following matters set up by the Company:
employees of the Company can report any irregularities, on a
confidential basis, identified in relation to financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. The Committee should ensure
that the Company has appropriate arrangement to ensure
that any reported matters will be investigated on a fair and
independent basis and appropriate actions will be taken; and

() to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2012 and
the unaudited interim financial report for the six months ended 30
June, 2012, including the accounting principles and practice adopted
by the Group.
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During the Period Under Review, the Audit Committee had performed
their primary duties to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures of the Company and had
also held meetings with the Company’s auditors, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) without the presence of executive
Directors and management, to discuss the auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Company.

Details of the members’ attendance of the Audit Committee meetings
are as follows:

REBHEA BERZEECRTREZIEER
B REB AR R MR RERF R AR
BF NERBTESREEEBRE NEAQR
ZHBENRE) « BEMRT GTEN/T ([1B8]) 817%
REFH BRI ARRLZEZ  NEEIERMTSH R
EHo

No. of meetings

attended/held
HiE BT
Name of Directors EEKE EEXE
Independent Non-executive Directors BWUIEHITES
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR fid A 5 A 4/4
Mr. Li Yuchun TEHFEE 4/4
Mr. Dai Shunlin HEM I £ 4/4
Remuneration Committee FMEES
Composition A%

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises three
members, namely Mr. Dai Shunlin (Chairman), Mr. Li Yuchun and Mr.
Liu Qingping, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and the
Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executives, Directors and Senior
Management;

(d) to review and approve the remuneration payable to the executive
Directors and Senior Management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
remuneration is determined in accordance with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration;
and

with respect to any service contracts of Directors that require the
Shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules,
to advise the Shareholders as to whether the terms are fair and
reasonable, whether such contracts are in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole, and as to how to
vote.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Period Under
Review and had performed the following:

0)

(i)

)

assessing individual performance of the Direction and Senior
Officers of the Group:

reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and Senior Officers of the Group with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives as well as individual
performances; and

reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
compensation related issues.

Details of the members’ attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

6 TRMMLEREZTAKEMBEERELE
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HEENGER -2 ARBEEEMT mAIE
MEE

() MRETMESKEEMABHEA (ZLETARA
EE)TB2EBEMMBE SR &

(@ BLRE TR RE13.68(ER EARERE
WENTAZESERHESONEREESAFE
B -AHRATNARARREREBRNE
VAR eI 1T ROR  [AIARER IR HI A8 -

FHEZEEeNEBEARAGRIT - REH L
EITTHIRIRA:

) FEAEEEZERSABE ZERIRR:

W

BEEFGLEBEFEREBE AN RERRX
B RAAEREE RS RBE 25T H
Fim . N

(i)

N

eI

(i) BEEBEFMEMRE TRESSREMtR

N

e
A

FHEZE R KB HEFENT:

No. of meetings

attended/held
HE BT
Name of Directors BEEHR eBRY
Independent Non-executive Directors BUENITES
Mr. Dai Shunlin IR £ 1/1
Mr. Li Yuchun TEELE 1/1
Executive Director WITES
Mr. Liu Qingping BIEFEE 1/1

Remuneration of Directors

The Company has adopted full disclosure of remunerations of
Directors with disclosure by name, amount and type in note 11 to the

financial statements.

EEHH

ARFICRAZERBESTHM YRPHRE
FEIRREE 2 8% SRIER T IAEE-
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Nomination Committee

Composition

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Chan Kin Sang (Chairman), Mr. Dai Shunlin and
Mr. Liu Qingping, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of the INEDs, having regard to the
requirements under the Listing Rules; and

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular, the Chairman and the Managing
Director.

All appointments of directors were nominated by the Nomination
Committee based on considerations including vacancy available,
competence and experience, possession of requisite skills and
qualifications, independence and integrity.

The Nomination Committee met once during the Period Under Review
and had performed the following:

(@)

50

reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board with
reference to certain criteria. These criteria included qualifications
required under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the Directors, professional
ethics and integrity, appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, as well as ability to devote sufficient time to
the work of the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors for re-election at the previous general meeting; and

assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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RAZECEZIKELFEFBOT

Details of the members’ attendance of the Nomination Committee
meetings are as follows:

No. of meetings

attended/held
HE BT

Name of Directors BEENS eBRY
Independent Non-executive Directors BAENITES
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BRI & 5o A4 1/1
Mr. Dai Shunlin BB & 1/1
Executive Director WITES
Mr. Liu Qingping BIEFEE 1/1
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEEREX
Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Financial EERREMETERRZER

Statements

The Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for
making sure that the financial statements for each financial year are
prepared to reflect the true and fair view of the state of affairs, results
and cash flow of the Group and in compliance with relevant law and
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December, 2012, the Board has
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s
financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

External Auditors

The Group appointed Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the Group’s external auditors. The acknowledgement of their
responsibilities on the financial statements is set forth in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on page 54 to 55 of this annual report.

During the financial year, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Deloitte in respect of its audit and non-audit services is set out below:

EEEMIAEREARMERBTMRFRE M
BHRRDABEEMAAMRMRAEE 2 €FAOR -
XERBREMRE WANTSHEBEMK L
MRAZBBEGR - REBE_FT——F+_-8
St HLEFEZMBHRRE EEECENE
ERMRELERER (FHEE AAMAE
ZHVE R ARE A RIR PR S R ERE SR
R-BEFAEERBR YIS EMBAZEREE
AEEZEE YARH I REARBKRFREMIE
FER-BEETRBEAEEZMBHRERK S EH
Uk &

SRS B

AEECRIREE - AERS T RAEHE
ZINBRZ D - RE LM B HRR AT ZRARM
N A FMFELS4EL6H 2 B R BANRE -

RAMBERER  SAZBEERBIRE C E
1B 2 F BT -

RMB’'000
Types of Services B 75 38 B AFRSTFETT
Audit services ZH R 2,293
Non-audit services I BURTS 187

The above non-audit services include the professional advisory on
taxation and the review of internal control of businesses.
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. While no cost-effective
internal control system can provide absolute assurance against loss
or misstatement, the Group’s internal controls and systems have
been designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, operational controls are in place, business risks are
suitably protected, proper accounting records are maintained and
financial information used within the business and for publication are
reasonable and accurate.

During the financial year, the Company has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems of
major operating segment of the Company with the assistance of
an independent professional accounting firm. The Directors are of
the view that the existing system of internal control is effective and
adequate to the Group. No significant areas of concern which might
affect shareholders were identified.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the Revised CG Code:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior officers of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct applicable
to employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
Revised CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

During the Period Under Review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

(i)  review of the compliance with the Model Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group by
the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at the general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings
by shareholders

There are no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or
the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer
to the procedures available on the websites of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Room 911, 9/Floor, Block A, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with Shareholders and investors. The Group
is committed to ensure that the Shareholders and the investors receive
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group
by the publication of announcements, circulars, interim reports and
annual reports. The Company also publishes all documents on the
Company’s website at www.taifeng.cc.

The Board believes that effective communication with the investment
community is essential. The Board continues to maintain regular
dialogues with the investment community to keep them abreast of
the Group’s business and development as well as operating strategy
and prospects. The Annual General Meeting of the Company also
provides a forum for dialogue and interaction with the Shareholders.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer
questions during the Annual General Meeting.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

Deloitte.
= 2]

To the members of

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited
PERERRIERERAA

(Formerly known as

International Taifeng Holdings Limited BB %= &2 %= ik AR 2 )
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
56 to 116, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

E=d

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited
FERERMIZERERA G

( A7 %8 International Taifeng Holdings Limited
B REEZERERAE) ZBR
(RESHEFME T ZHERAA])

EECERTERERAGERERAR([EA
A REMBAR (5 [ 556 ]| ) NFE56E116
AZGeMBHRER EFEER_T— 1+
A=+ —RZEAMBRRHEEK  UERBEZR
HIEFEZHEAZERER GalaZ2BHRE
RERERER URTIESABREMERE M
FEHER

EENGEVMBRRARBEZER
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BBE 2 EE
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEeEZHEWER
For the year ended 31 December 2012
B s = = ) = =BT

2012 2011
—E—_—F —F——F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
k=3 AR¥ T AR Fr
Revenue Y 25 ©) 2,401,049 2182, 67
Cost of sales 5 & P AR (1,451,579) (1,322,483)
Gross profit EA 949,470 829,684
Other income E AU A 6 6,921 7,437
Other gains and losses H bz & 518 7 (9,770) 2,048
Distribution and selling expenses SIERIHERS (136,930) (132,611)
Administrative expenses THAX (31,185) (32,310)
Impairment loss on —HEAHEHERE 2
an available-for-sale investment BB E 18 (4,452) (22,934)
Finance costs B 5 B AN 8 (18,327) (14,330)
Profit before taxation R B2 A 5 Al 755,727 636,984
Income tax expense i8R 9 (237,651) (196,881)
Profit for the year FRRFA 10 518,076 440,103
Other comprehensive (expense) Hih2mE (BR) s
income
— fair value loss on ——HEHAHEEREZ
an available-for-sale investment NEEEE (4,452) (22,934)
— impairment loss on ——IHAHHEREZ
an available-for-sale investment B B 1 4,452 22,934
Total comprehensive income FREEWKEHAEE
for the year 518,076 440,103
Profit and total comprehensive income — ZNA &l # A A FE 5 F K% )
for the year attributable to owners of PRI Gy
the Company 518,076 440,103
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BRELRBF (ALEK) 13 0.518 0.440
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R R | &

At 31 December 2012
et = f =9 E

2012 2011
bt Tl —E——F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥EFT AR T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R KRR 14 470,717 515,950
Prepaid lease payments A EFKIE 15 7,103 7,280
Deposit paid for acquisition of land use Eﬁ)&iﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ &
rights and buildings BFzENEZES 16 61,920 61,920
Trademark [ELE 17 6,934 6,934
Deferred tax asset BRI A E 25 2,699 2,699
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 18 6,614 11,066
555,987 605,849
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 86,589 117,575
Trade and other receivables and & U AR A % /H\ ﬁﬂfE W skIE
prepayments VSSEENE- S 20 863,597 635,972
Prepaid lease payments A EKRIE 15 178 179
Pledged bank deposits Eﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂfﬁﬂf EZN 21 72,965 46,761
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR IR E 21 1,205,905 842,525
2,229,234 1,643,012
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEaE
Trade and other payables and accruals &1~ BR 28 I E b f& 5 3K
AR fEETE A 22 418,373 295,609
Tax payable FE I HE 18 111,342 84,311
Amount due to a shareholder eSS — B R FRIE 28 27,200 27,200
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 103,000 163,810
659,915 570,930
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,569,319 1,072,082
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERREBERSE
LIABILITIES 2,125,306 1,677,931
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEME
Deferred tax liability BEERIBEE 25 46,431 31,132
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,078,875 1,646,799
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXARHE
Share capital A A 26 88,000 88,000
Reserves (ke 1,990,875 1,558,799
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,078,875 1,646,799
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 116 were FE56E116BE LM BHRERERZZE—=F=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 Bl= /e EE%%AHE/EI[T“% Fzg - WHEAT
March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: ATREREFSH
Liu Qingping Liu Chunwei
2EF 2|4 &
Director Director
EBE -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
R = =t = A= EE S

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAARANEE
Share-
Contributions based PRC  Investment
Share Share Merger Special from payment general  revaluation Capital Retained
capital premium reserve reserve  shareholders reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Rt HE REER
B RGEE AfHRE RHIRE RREE DR — Rk % EAfE REER 5t
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
(note 27) (note 28) (note 27) (note 28)
(Hiter) (Hiit28) (Hter) (Hi#28)
At 1 January 2011
= 88,000 342,054 180,000 977 13,289 14,563 109,240 - 34,763 624,897 1,407,783
Profit for the year
ERRA - - - - - - - - - 440,103 440,103
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale
investment
—BUEHERE AT EER - - - - - - - (22,934) - - (22,934)
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale
investment
—BARLEREZAEER - - - - - - - 22,934 - - 22,934
Total comprehensive income for the year
FRR2ENRET - - - - - - - - - 440,103 440,103
Deemed capital contribution from
a shareholder (note 28)
BIE-ZRFTE (Hiitos) - - - - - 2,913 - - - - 2,913
Transfer
ap - - - - - - 52,344 - - (52,344) -
Dividend recognised and paid as
distrioution fnote 12)
BRAEDRRER RS (HH12) - - - - - - - - - (204,000) (204,000)
At 31 December 2011
R=F—=Fr=A=1F-H 88,000 342,054 180,000 977 13,289 17,476 161,584 - 34,763 808,656 1,646,799
Profit for the year
ERRA - - - - - - - - - 518,076 518,076
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale
investment
—BUEHERE AT EER - - - - - - - (4,452) - - (4,459)
Impairment loss on an avalable-for-sale
investment
—BAHLEREZAERR - - - - - - - 4,452 - - 4,452
Total comprehensive income for the year
FR2ENRET - - - = - - - - - 518,076 518,076
Transfer
o - - - - - - 61,430 - - (61,430) -
Dividend recognised and paid as
distrioution fnote 12)
RAEFERRBRZRE (Hi#12) - - - - - - - - - (86,000) (86,000)
At 31 December 2012
RZZE-—%+=-fA=1+-H 88,000 342,054 180,000 977 13,289 17,476 223,014 - 34763 1,179.802  2,078875
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
e e ot S =Y

2012 2011
—E——F =Rt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TTT AR%FT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit before taxation B 352 B A 755,727 636,984
Adjustments for: TP IREL AR :
Depreciation of property, plant and M WMERZEBETE
equipment 45,554 42,758
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale —IHAHEERE 2 REBE
investment 4,452 22,934
Finance costs BA TS AR 18,327 14,330
Impairment loss recognised in respect of R AR SR BE R 2 R (B BT 18
trade receivables 10,520 5,263
Share-based payment expense VAR 0015 3k 2 Bl 2 - 2,913
Release of prepaid lease payments R TB HERIE 178 178
Bank interest income RITH BUA (6,212) (5,614)
Operating cash flows before EEESEYN KCERERE
movements in working capital 828,546 719,746
Decrease in inventories FER 30,986 21,917
Increase in trade and other receivables and JFE U5 BR 5% R L th FE LR
prepayments LA K% 38 {5 F B £ 0 (56,145) (187,469)
Decrease in trade and other payables and JE 15 BR 3 R EAth FE ST 3K
accruals LA K JEST & AR A (59,236) (90,224)
Cash generated from operations BEEBREE RS 744,151 463,970
Taxation paid EENE A (195,321) (176,501)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KY%(KELCESTE 548,830 287,469
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEEERRITFER (89,242) (125,721)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEM&E (321) (85,294)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B EFRITFHK 63,038 133,411
Interest received SR EUPSN 6,212 5,614
NET CASH USED IN REZHHAZRLSER
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (20,313) (71,990)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012 2011
g% =F ==t
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEES
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (238,911) (414,651)
Dividend paid B E (86,000) (204,000)
Interest paid BT H A (18,327) (14,330)
New bank borrowings raised FERITEE 178,101 406,913
Repayment to a shareholder EE—BRERIE - (2,550)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHBAZESFE
ACTIVITIES (165,137) (228,618)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND BR&RELZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS i CRD) F8E 363,380 (13,139)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUOZReRRSEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 842,525 855,664
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZECRASEEY
OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash ASRTT &5 8R MIR & R T~ 1,205,905 842,525
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Cayman Islands.

The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
Room 911, 9th floor, Block A, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 39
Ma Tau Wai Road, Hong Kong, respectively.

The shares of the Company have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 11 June 2010.
The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company
was Harvest Sun Enterprises Limited (“Harvest Sun”) from the
date of incorporation to 11 June 2010. Harvest Sun, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, became the substantial
shareholder of the Company with its shareholding of 48% after
11 June 2010.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are production and distribution of cotton yarns and
bedding products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
group entities and the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of

HKAS 12 Underlying Assets; and
Amendments to Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HKFRS 7 — Transfers of Financial Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and the positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERAFHITIREBIEBTIEHRELEL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ([EEBEHREER]) (&)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(FRIC) — Int 20

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle’

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities’

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Gudiance’

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?®
Consolidated Financial Statements’
Joint Arrangements’
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement’
Employee Benefits’
Separate Financial Statements’
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures’
Presentation of Iltems of
Other Comprehensive Income?
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine’

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Y Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these new and revised standards, amendments or interpretation
will have no material impact on the results and the financial

position of the Group.

62

EBTEMRERZHTREETERUE

HEER

AEBEWERFEMATIE BME W RER
ZHE MBI B R MR E ER

BANBREEAZEF]

BB B RS ER
EYGA ]
BB RS ER
FORRBBUBRE
EBIE7 2 B3]
BB HSREER
F10% BAPBRE
ERENRRES
B R 22 I 55125
ZIER]
BB RS ER
F10  BAPBRE
BRIE128E R ES
BRI ETH 2 B3]
BB RS
F0%
BB B RS ER
£105
BB RS ER
115
BB B RS ER
F10%%
BB RS
$135
BB G ERF195
(ZZ——F&ET)
BEG LR E27H
(ZE——FE&B:])
BB QLR F285
(ZZ——F&{ET)
BESHEE1H
2153
BB LR F325
ZIER]
B (BB BHRE
ZEZE9)
—ZEF20%

S = =
BHEBI SRS EL
ZEEE

BE-HRESREERS
BERFE

BB BIRE RSS2
S B B BRI
E‘gi

SABRR  LRA%H
RREMERZERZ
RE:@EEal

BYMBHRE

REERRRAREREL
BAE

2 HEMEERERA

BHEREERERAE’

BARBBLERA LY

" RCE=F AR CFER

IR

2 Ro-F-OF—F AR ZEHEZFEY

£

¢ RoFE-FF—F-AXZEREFEE

IR

¢ RoE-——FL A BRI FER

B4R

ARPEFEHERALENT REETE
A BT RRBHARE 2 XERM BRI

TEELEARE-

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited & B2 £ /K & 2 8% A R A &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the period are included in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

Annual Report 2012 4 ¥k

3.

EREFEE

REMBRRDERBESHMASEMZ
BRMBREEA MRS - WO 78 MR
REBINEEMERGMERARES LT
RAIREERRIRDIRE 2 BRBE-

T X B G BRATEE R 8 M5 ]
RIOBBELERAEERR EETERT
BB AFEFTERRIN -BELEA—RIRIE
SR HREZAFENE

TESEERHEINMT -
RERBZEE

REMBRRBEARTARI AR ES 2
ER(HMNBQR) 2MBEHRE - WAREHE
BRAEERBZUBREERKAGHEHMN
B s AVER{S R 42 -

IR HE LB AR WA RFAXEH
AGFEEHRRER BRBELERABEA
HEAEHEERARAILE GRERBR) °

WAERE  GUHBAANGREFLEE
USE @ R RAEBE oK B A AR
& B B

ERERRRRZRS &ih WARRX
RiRA IR B R 2 BEH-

Wz e RE
W HRC MR EEREBZATFEFE X

HERELFXEBBAETFELEmmEIK 2
R - BRI R SHEARRA DR -

HEEMZWEDIRINERMNBBRE
1 BN & T 5 P A R 1FBS T IARERR -

s AFAEECKERBEEERLZERRBRK
ClHREHETET

63



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

B 75 R R Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B s = = ) = = EE ST

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)
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Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currency) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for

use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are carried at cost and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible assets
below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gain
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

68

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of shares transferred at the date of transfer is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the service period with a
corresponding increase in equity (Share-based payment reserve).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets relating to dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:
e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

e (disappearance of an active market for the financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and amount due to a shareholder are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Estimated allowance for receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of trade and
other receivables. Allowance for these receivables is made
based on the evaluation of collectability and on management’s
judgment by reference to the estimation of the future cash flows
discounted at an effective interest rate to calculate the present
value.

A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these debtors, including their current
creditworthiness. If the actual future cash flows were less
than expected, additional allowance may be required. As at
31 December 2012, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is RMB509,168,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of RMB17,324,000) (831 December 2011: carrying amount
of RMB494,056,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB6,804,000).

Inventory valuation method

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The net realisable value is estimated by reference to selling
price of inventory subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
The Group reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-
moving merchandise and use markdown to clear merchandise.
If the actual selling prices of inventory were less than expected,
additional allowance may be required.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of inventories is
RMB86,589,000 (net of provision for stock of RMB12,093,000)
(2011: carrying amount of RMB117,575,000 net of provision for
stock of RMB12,093,000).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports regularly reviewed by the board of directors, who are the
chief operating decision makers, for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance.

The Group’s revenue are all generated from its PRC subsidiaries
which have two operating segments, the manufacture and
distribution of cotton yarns and bedding products. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and requires different information technology systems
and marketing strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s operating segments.

The manufacture and distribution of cotton yarns segment
refers to the operation of cotton yarns tailored to the specific
requirements of customers, such as different texture, thickness,
sheen and elasticity. Its income mainly comprises sales revenue
of cotton yarns to textile manufacturers in both the domestic and
overseas markets. Cotton yarns are used in the production of
cotton textile which is used in garments and furnishings.

The manufacture and distribution of bedding products segment
refers to the manufacture and distribution of bedding products
such as bed covers, flat sheets, pillow cases, bed sheets and
quilt covers, as well as combination sets of such bedding
products. Its income mainly comprises sales revenue of bedding
products from products sold under the “TAIFENG” brand in
the Mainland People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) market
and products sold to overseas OEM customers under their
international brands.

No segment information of liabilities is provided to the chief
operating decision makers for the assessment of performance of
different segments. Therefore, only segment revenue, segment
profit and segment assets are presented.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, profit and assets by
operating and reportable segment is as follows:

WEK D RER ()

AEBREERBREDMEI D 2D+
BN REEZDNANT :

ok

B

E;k

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE-E2--“F+-A=t+-HLEE
Manufacture
Manufacture and
and distribution of Inter-
distribution of bedding Segment segment Consolidated
cotton yarns products total elimination Unallocated total
BER BER
DEWMY D #HKm ik} o5 P doESE AAE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Ngstim « Abzim AErm AiTm  Asam A
Revenue from external REIMBEP 2 5
customers 985,518 1,415,531 2,401,049 - - 2,401,049
Inter-segment sales HEHEEE - 220 220 (220) - -
Segment revenue VaR=il G 985,518 1,415,751 2,401,269 (220) - 2,401,049
Segment profit Gok: it 128,338 674,818 803,156 - - 803,156
Segment assets as at “F&+=A
31 December 2012 = Jr BZAHEE 1,004,056 469,275 1,473,331 - - 1,473,331
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision FHRETFEEBLEAREREAED E
makers and included in the measure of segment profit and FMEEERGT A ZRIE:
assets:
Addition to non-current assets A INFEREV A E (#7:E)
(notg) 10 93 103 - 218 321
Depreciation of property, 0NE - BERXENE
plant and equipment (43,343) (489) (43,832) - (1,722) (45,554)
Release of prepaid lease ERBENEERE
payments (178) - (178) - - (178)
Impairment loss recognised in 5t FE YR AR 2 R E B 18
respect of trade receivables 2,099 8,421 10,520 - - 10,520

Note:
tax asset.
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)

5.

WK RER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
eam = —4se s B =l

=
Manufacture
Manufacture and
and distribution of
distribution of bedding
cotton yarns products
SR HiER

DHBY 7 R
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETL

Inter-
Segment segment Consolidated
total elimination Unallocated total
A D E RIS AOBE fRE BE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT AEETx

Revenue from external RENPEF 2 K

customers 960,449 1,191,718 2,152,167 - - 2,152,167
Inter-segment sales HEEEE - 2,639 2,639 (2,639) = =
Segment revenue 5 Hias 960,449 1,194,357 2,154,806 (2,639) - 2,152,167
Segment profit vyl 136,799 561,892 698,691 - - 698,691
Segment assets as at 31 RZE——&+=A

December 2011 =+—HZAHEE 720,316 593,158 1,313,474 - - 1,313,474

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
makers and included in the measure of segment profit and
assets:

Addition to non-current assets  RAIZERENEE (A1:#)

(note) 82,701 221
Depreciation of property, ¥ BERIENE

plant and equipment (40,645) (494)
Release of prepaid lease RBRBMEEHRE

payments (178) -
Impairment loss (reversed) FREMRR (BE)BRZ

recognised in respect of REEE

trade receivables (42 5,305

P

EHRETEIEE L&ﬁ%ﬂ&?ﬁ% D BB
MR EERGAZRIA

82,922 = 2,372 85,204
(41,139) = (1,619) (42,758)
(178) = 2 (178)
5,263 0 2 5,263

Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
tax asset.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

78

Performance of the operating segments is measured based
on segment profit. Income tax expense is not allocated to
operating segments.

Reconciliation of segment profit

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without the allocation of central administrative
costs, interest income, finance costs and impairment loss
on an available-for-sale investment. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

5. WERkDBER (&)

(a) Z‘“%’ﬁﬁﬁZ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ?&F

BREAX TS

(b) 2 EEF AR

7 BPE MR D BRI AR D EL R RITH
PR FB A I B R B — TR AT
tlj%&;éz}ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬂiz}ﬁiﬂ
BERBBDRAEEZERRERD

éﬁ&pﬂﬁ"*ﬁi‘%iﬁ{’ﬁﬂj#&izgﬁ°

performance.

Segment profit is reconciled to profit before taxation of the

Group as follows:

5 A1 i 7] 2 B BR N

2012 2011
—E—= —F——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥FT AREFor
Total segment profit 5 BB v FI| 42 RE 803,156 698,691
Unallocated income: ROBUA :
Interest income F B U A 6,212 5,614
Other income and other gains HAth U A K H b Uk 2 1,151 2,076
Unallocated expenses: RO :
Depreciation of property, Y- EREEITE
plant and equipment (1,722) (1,619)
Finance costs B 75 K AR (18,327) (14,330)
Impairment loss on an —IEHA N ERE 2 REEE
available-for-sale investment (4,452) (22,934)
Central administrative costs AR R 7T AR 2R (30,291) (30,514)
Profit before taxation B % Al A 755,727 636,984
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. WERDIBER (&)

(c) Reconciliation of segment assets (c)

The assets of the Group are allocated to the operating
segments based on the operations of the segments.
However, certain property, plant and equipment, deferred
tax asset, available-for-sale investment, other receivables
and prepayments, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash, are not allocated as they relate to more
than one reportable and operating segments.

Segment assets are reconciled to total assets of the Group
by reportable segment as follows:

DEEEZH IR

AEBE 2 BETREDMBEBIEEL
BORE AT ANETWE  BEKR
B REEHRAEE AIHHERE H
fl B M RIB R FA RIE - EEARITE
FARBITEHR RS KB —(ER
EREENE WREHBREELD
[

PDEEEEAEEREERREDELZ
HERUWT

2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TTT N =
Total segment assets DEEERE 1,473,331 1,313,474
Unallocated assets: RAMEE
Property, plant and equipment Y RE KRR 19,716 21,220
Deferred tax asset FEFIAE E 2,699 2,699
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 6,614 11,066
Other receivables and H A fE W SR8 R TR A BB
prepayments 3,991 11,116
Pledged bank deposits 2R ITER 72,965 46,761
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRS 1,205,905 842,525
Total assets per consolidated HREPBRARKMTEERE
statements of financial position 2,785,221 2,248,861
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Information about geographical areas

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers by geographical markets,
irrespective of the origin of the goods.

5.

WEK D RER ()

(d BAREZER
TREHRASEREINBEFRILET
BED (TimE IR ) 2 WaE AT -

Turnover by
geographical markets

RiENSE S 2 EERE
2012 2011
= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFoT
PRC (country of the domicile) R (FEff ) 2,361,510 2,008,445
United States & Brazil ZEEER 23,896 69,082
Hong Kong & Macau BB RBM 10,030 54,197
Europe EP! 5,613 17,417
Australia & Malaysia SN K 55 R P n - 3,026
2,401,049 2,152,167

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
asset and available-for-sale investment) are all located in
PRC.

Information about major customers contributing over
10% of total revenue of the Group

The revenue from the Group’s largest customer was
approximately RMB388,696,000 and RMB272,201,000,
representing 16.2% and 12.6% of the total sales of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The revenue was derived from bedding
products segments.

AEBZIERBEE (REEHAEE
A HERE AN HRI R & -

() BRAXEEWREAEERMEBI10%Z
FTERFEHR

Bare e T = ml T e
=+—HIEFE RAFXEBZARF
Z W o Bl 4 A A R #388,696,0007T
B AR#272,201,0007T - BE R ANEE
fHEEEE 216.2% K% 12.6% ° it 5 Y 2§
REKRRDE -
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)

(e)

Information about major customers contributing over
10% of total revenue of the Group (Continued)

In addition to the above largest customer, there were
three customers in bedding products segment with
revenue contributing approximately RMB344,619,000,
RMB330,267,000 and RMB276,032,000, representing
about 14.4%, 13.8% and 11.5%, respectively, to the total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012. For the year ended 31 December 2011, these
three customers in bedding products segment
contributed revenue of approximately RMB262,919,000,
RMB257,314,000 and RMB226,537,000, representing
about 12.2%, 12.0% and 10.5%, respectively, to the total
revenue of the Group.

Taifeng Textile Group Company Limited 2= 2 47 4% % B 5 R
A A) (“TTG”) was a customer of the Group in manufacturing
and distribution of cotton yarns segment, contributed
sales of cotton yarns of approximately RMB252,615,000
(2011: RMB194,788,000), representing about 10.5% (2011:
9.1%) of the revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012. TTG has been a textile enterprise
incorporated in PRC since 2001. It is principally engaged in
the trading of cotton and manufacturing and sales of fabrics.
Before the reorganization process of the Group for its
listing in 2010, TTG and the Group had common controlling
shareholders and common directors including the Chairman
of the Company, Mr. Liu Qingping. As such, TTG was
regarded as a related party. As part of the reorganization,
the above-mentioned common controlling shareholders had
disposed of their entire interests in TTG to independent third
parties. In addition, Mr. Liu and other common directors had
resigned as directors of TTG by 7 July 2009.

No revenue from other individual customer from cotton
yarns segment contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.
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5.

WK o RER (&)

(e)

BRAXEERSARIRMEB10%2
IREFEN(B)

BRERSZAREIN ZBKRGEDBE
SR EESE e aaa e A= e
IEFEEZWRED B AAEE WS L5
B B4 A R #344,619,0007T « A R #
330,267,0007 & A K ¥276,032,000
T HER414.4%  13.8% K% 11.5% °
BE-Z——F+-A=+—RH1t&F
B Z_tRmOARPZREAEASE
B U =5 R 5E 5 B A A R 262,919,000
7T AR #257,314,0007T & A R #&
226,537,0007T " HE R #12.2%
12.0%%10.5% °

FEGBEEERAR ([RLHE])
BASBERERDHEIRYHDEBEFR—F
R SR R e b ey = T
AIEFEAAEBEBRIBAHERLOA
R #252,615,0000t (ZF——F: AR
#5194,788,0007T ) ' HHE I 2N & B Y 25
#9105% (—ZE——F:01% ) - T 2%
BEA T —FREPREMKILZ
MY TENEEFREUARRE
KEEME R —ZEFAEEA L
TETEMAA REHBEAEERES
HRAZERRERERES  B8IFEAQF
FRIAEFRE-EIL TLHEWS
AEBAL NEABEF Lt HF
PR ERABIE =T HERENRE
Wiz REBRERS o Ub N Bl E R E A
HRABEENR-_ZTAFELA A2
AIBI IR L s BIAS -

RYHHREALMERNESFREE_T
T R e e S S
FREZBHE AR MRS E A RS
10%
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6. OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group’s other income is as follows:

Hftug A

AEBEMBAZAITWAT

2012 2011
SER=E4 —T——F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TTT N
Bank interest income SRITH) BUA 6,212 5,614
Others Hth 709 1,823
6,921 7,437
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Ha=REE
2012 2011
SEr=24E —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ANEFEFID
Impairment loss recognised in respect of T FE UK BR FUHER 2 R B & 1B
trade receivables (10,520) (5,263)
Net exchange gain (loss) M e (E518) F58 (380) 1,504
Gain on disposal of scrap materials HEER 2 W 1,130 5,807
(9,770) 2,048
8. FINANCE COSTS B 78 B A
2012 2011
—E—CF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR T
Interest on: THZIEZ2FE
Bank and other borrowings wholly EARAFK 1%(@
repayable within five years RITREMEER 16,734 12,935
Amount due to shareholders JEASS PR R FRIR 1,593 1,395
18,327 14,330
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FISHBEAX
2012 2011
= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKEFIT
Tax charge represents: RIEm X IE -
Current tax: RO EATGIE -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FECEMSR
(TeEEPEN]) 212,796 174,479
Withholding tax on dividend from a PRC —EFERERARIRKREZ
subsidiary TR 9,556 28,671
222,352 203,150
Deferred tax: EAERIE -
— Provision on withholding tax from ——RAT R B AR RS IE
undistributed profit from a PRC i Al 2 TR B
subsidiary 24,855 22,402
— Withholding tax on dividend from a —— AT B R RRE 2
PRC subsidiary BB (9,556) (28,671)
15,299 (6,269)
237,651 196,881
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the ARAEB Z WAL IEREBELINIERS
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong B8 WA BT IR E A S5 B o
Kong.
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “EIT Law”) BIEFRBECEMSTE ([REMETE]) &
and Detailed Implementation Rules of the EIT Law, the standard DNEFRESTEERME PEMNB AR ZZ
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. AR K £25% ©
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EEE = A= hEar = 5] Sqr— Bl e 42l
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continueq)

10.

84

9. FBHRAX (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the FERFIARF S B 2R EIRT RGN Z
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows: HERWT
2012 2011
=SR==43 —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥FT AEBT T
Profit before tax B ¢ B Al 755,727 636,984
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% BRI P EMSHTE25%
AEZHE 188,932 159,246
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DA MBHZ 2 MG E
for tax purpose 24,021 14,739
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBRBA 2R iE72&
for tax purpose (350) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERGIEBBE 2 RS2 193 494
Tax effect of withholding tax arising on A B A B R UK S A
undistributed profits of FREAETRNT 2 TG 2
the PRC subsidiaries 24,855 22,402
Tax charge for the year FRFHIER 237,651 196,881
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FRER
2012 2011
—E—CF —_F——
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®FT ABRET T
Profit for the year has been arrived FRBENEMRATIER :
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) ExMe (A1) 4,846 7,820
Other staff salaries and benefits Hih B IT#& REF 112,222 101,143
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, R K4E F 5T S
excluding those of directors (TEREREZESEL 2HF) 3,590 3,660
Total staff costs 48 8 TR AN 120,658 112,623
Auditor’s remuneration % BR RN Bl & 2,293 2,481
Depreciation of property, Y- HEREETE
plant and equipment 45,554 42,758
Release of prepaid lease payments R TENEERRIE 178 178
Cost of inventories recognised as BREAZ 2 FEKA
an expense 1,451,579 1,322,483
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11.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

Directors

Details of the emoluments paid to the directors and the chief
executive of the Group for the years are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2012

1. EE THREABRES T

=

MEFERENTAKREES RITRARZ
MM

BE-_Z——+=-A=+—HLLFE

Retirement
Salaries Benefits
and other Scheme  Share-based
Fees allowances Contributions payment Total
E e BAREA
e Hitr2h SEMR RASHEX st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT ARE TR ARETF7n AR® TR AREFT
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Liu Qingping BT AL - 1,029 18 - 1,047
Ms. Qi Tongli TRBRZL - 806 14 - 820
Mr. Liu Chunwei Bl - 830 14 - 844
Mr. Li Dengxiang TEHEE - 806 14 - 820
Mr. Zou Shengzhong BEBLE - 806 14 - 820
Independent non-executive BV EHITES:
directors:
Mr. Chan Kin Sang B &k 295 - - - 295
Mr. Li Yuchun FEELE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Dai Shunlin HIEMEE 100 - - - 100
495 4,277 74 - 4,846
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11.

86

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2011

1. E5 -THRARRESHM (&)

BEx (&)

HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HILFE

Retirement
Salaries Benefits
and other Scheme Share-based
Fees allowances  Contributions payment Total
He R RIRREF
e H )28k FEER ROGHREL o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NETm - ARSTEE  ARETE AEETE AR
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Liu Qingping AEFLEE - 1,028 17 2,913 3,958
Ms. Qi Tongli TREXL - 806 14 - 820
Mr. Liu Chunwei Elfaaps - 828 14 - 842
Mr. Li Dengxiang TEHEE - 806 14 - 820
Mr. Zou Shengzhong PEBEE - 806 14 - 820
Independent non-executive BYFHITEE:
directors:
Mr. Chan Kin Sang BRiEExE 360 - - - 360
Mr. Li Yuchun TEERE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Dai Shunlin MK E 100 - - - 100
560 4274 73 2,913 7,820
Mr. Liu Chunwei is also the chief executive of the Company AWML EITNBRNAT ZITHER B L

and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive.

XA E e BRERERTTIRAERRHR
B2 e
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11.

12.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employees

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the five highest paid
individuals of the Group included four executive directors (2011:
five executive directors). The remuneration of the remaining one
individual for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

’E

AEBRAAR

1. EE THRIAREEFM (&)

g = = B = ==
SHEMALTRENERITE
E(ZE——F AR PTES) HE_T
== B = SF=EIEEEE P =%2 A

T2 EHBMT
2012 2011
—EB-=F LG~
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥T T AL
Salaries and other allowances e R E AR, 1,000 =
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRB AT B R - -
1,000 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of

RER AEBYERAEIMNEEFHALRS
FHAL (BREZRER)XNME FR
e R E B INARE B 2 R R
BE -RMEFEA A EEFRERIEM

the directors waived any emoluments during both years. B4 o
DIVIDENDS 12. B2
2012 2011
T —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR FiT
Dividend recognised as distributions FAERB DI ZIRE
during the year
2012 Interim — nil (2011: 2011 Interim, T -—FHhH-&E
paid RMB0.091 per share) e E R T e s
FHENERARRE
0.0917T) - 91,000
2011 Final, paid — RMB0.086 per share —E——FRHAEHN
(2011: 2010 Final, paid RMB0.113 — 3 A R%0.0867T
per share) —2——&: 22 —-FF
RSN ERARE
Q1185 86,000 113,000
86,000 204,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Bzr—F——

12,

13.

88

A=+ —AIEE

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

In accordance with the voting results for the annual general
meeting on 26 June 2012, the Board declared a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011 of RMB86,000,000 with
RMBO0.086 per share to the shareholders on the Register of
Members of the Company on 5 July 2012.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of RMB52,000,000 with
RMBO0.052 per share be payable on or around 26 July 2013 to
the shareholders on the register of members of the Company on
11 July 2013. The proposed dividend payments are subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and are payable in HK$ based on the
official exchange rate of RMB against HK$ as quoted by the
People’s Bank of China on 19 July 2013.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

12.

13.

BRE (&)

BER_T—_F A+ RERTZKRR
BFREIREER EFQRAR_T——
FLARRRIARRBRRAMZBRREIRK
R e T it - P e W
AHABREBRARK0.086TT A LARK
86,000,0007T °

BEeEZAN_T—=FtA+—B8%K7
RAEREAMZBREIRERAREF/RA
R #0.0527C - & 2t A R #52,000,0007T *
RZE—=Ft A=+ SHKBIRIRf - #
B BREANRBRENEERRAFAES
FHfE THEREPBRARBRITR-E—=F
tATABEBARBEBTLZE FERN
P TCIR LS o

BREXRBF

ADFRE AR ESREABR R TE

2012 2011
= i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T A RS T

Profit for the year attributable to owners of KA &1 A A FE 15 F A A
the Company 518,076 440,103
’000 ‘000
FiE F Az

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose  Ftat E &M EAREF] 2

of basic earnings per share LA E B 1,000,000 1,000,000
No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years as AR EEETBELBIRRG  WITES

there were no potential ordinary shares in issue.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ -BERFRE

Plant and Office Motor
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
BF BERRE WORE AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
NEhiaem R ARESEE  AESEE AR T
COST BA
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—A—H 76,265 582,617 3,956 377 663,215
Additions iyl 38,076 44,849 1,025 1,344 85,294
At 31 December 2011 WS =T =T 114,341 627,466 4,981 1,721 748,509
Additions iyl = - 321 = 321
At 31 December 2012 R=B-Z-f+=-HA=+—H 114,341 627,466 5,302 1,721 748,830
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 January 2011 WS ——4=—F—F 13,493 174,430 1,691 187 189,801
Provided for the year FREE 3,059 39,163 366 170 42,758
At 31 December 2011 =F==8Fr=f== 16,552 213,593 2,057 357 232,559
Provided for the year $ W 3,722 40,989 525 318 45,554
At 31 December 2012 R=Z2-—-%+=-A=+—H 20,274 254,582 2,582 675 278,113
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 R=Z2—-f+-A=1-H 94,067 372,384 2,720 1,046 470,717
At 31 December 2011 WEF=—5rZ = 97,789 413,873 2,924 1,364 515,950
The above items of property, plant and equipment are i - BE R EEIE B YA TS F HR A
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following numbers of HGEEAETE
years:
Buildings 15 — 30 years EE 115 =80
Plant and equipment 5 - 15 years BB K& 5 - 154
Office equipment 5 - 10 years o 25 5 — 104
Motor vehicles 10 years S 104
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. EHERE

16.

90

2012 2011
===t —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT N
Prepaid lease payments comprise: FENHEERBEE:
Leasehold land in the PRC under RBEFHBEAORTRRHEE 2
medium-term lease HE i 7,281 7,459
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEEL 2947 -
Current asset MENEE 178 179
Non-current asset ERBEE 7,103 7,280
7,281 7,459

The prepaid lease payment is amortised over the lease terms of
the rights on a straight-line basis of 50 years.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE RIGHTS
AND BUILDINGS

Shandong Taifeng entered into an acquisition agreement on
19 November 2010 with TTG, pursuant to which Shandong
Taifeng agreed to acquire from TTG certain land use rights and
buildings for production purposes, for a cash consideration of
RMB68,800,000 in accordance with a valuation report from an
independent valuer, Jones Lang Lasalle.

On the same date, Shandong Taifeng had also entered into a
supplemental agreement with TTG to reduce the original lease
area and the monthly rental in respect of an existing lease
agreement.

A refundable deposit of RMB61,920,000 was paid by Shandong
Taifeng to TTG in prior year. The acquisition has not yet been
completed as at the date when these financial statements are
authorised for issue. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group will be able to complete the acquisition in
due course.

The remaining unpaid amount of RMB6,880,000 has been
disclosed in note 35 as capital commitment.

16.

BNHEERENEREENEAEHEETH
5O A # 55 o

BATHERERBFZENES

LRF=LGERFEHEBR _FT—FF+—A
T BRI —RWE R Bt IWRZFER
BERBEUGEMTERITEL 2HERS
A A K #68,800,0007T 2 B & R E R L4
BEAETIHWERERET UELEER

RIA - IUREEHRF LGN L —HAR
W RO REEEEMABHERZ T
A&

LR REEREFRAREHBITARE
61,920,000 T Al R EHZ & - IWIHWIER %S
B 75 T R JE AL T B B BB R 2R » R A R
EERAASERBENNEE RKE AU
o

KT EAEE A RR156,880,0007T B FAMT X354 52
{EE ARAIE -
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17.

18.

Fr=—A=+—HILFE
TRADEMARK

The trademark represents brand name of “TAIFENG” and its logo,
which was acquired during the year ended 31 December 2009 at
its fair value of RMB6,934,400 in accordance with the valuation
report from an independent valuer, It R £ & EFHERE
f£/2F]. The trademark has a legal life of 10 years expiring in May
2019, but is renewable every 10 years at minimal cost.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
would renew the trademark continuously and has the ability to do
s0. Various studies including product life cycle studies, market,
competitiveness and environmental trends, and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the
Group, which supports that the trademark has no foreseeable
limit to its legal life of 10 years expiring at May 2019 and the
trademark products are expected to generate net cash inflows
for the Group.

As a result, the trademark is considered by management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life and hence the trademark
is not amortised. Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment of trademark with
indefinite useful life.

17.

[k

R F%%JZ%H@%%@&H*??% Ty
BE_FTNFT_A=T—HLFEA-

?R?%i1ﬁfﬁﬁmjt/‘?\¢‘i/mﬁ%»f“ﬁﬁ@f
ERARBRZEEREAERIFEARY
6,934,400 E - BIR 2 RIEFH R TF
R-ZBE-NFRAZH S TFEIUED
ZEREE-

ARBAEERR ARERBBEYERNE
BB - AXEERECETZENARL B
EmFARTR 5 BHERREBE
AR mEHhEEE FRAREIEELURNER
R-ZZF-NFRARABZ+FAZEAFHLE
ARAEZRE YTRHERERA SAKE
THRFEEIRA

At AEEERER R BRARRAER
FH WG TAEE R AEHEFER
SRERIF - A RRHBRBETREETR
i N TEES T2 e Gy e S s Bl e 2
B -AEEZERERRAERAERFH
Z BRI HEIRE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 18. AItHERE
Available-for-sale investment comprises: AIHEHERERE:
2012 2011
= S
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥EFT AR T
Listed investment: LEiEE
Equity security listed in Hong Kong REB LT RAE S 6,614 11,066
Analysed for reporting purposes as MHEMS DN B
Non-current asset IEREEE 6,614 11,066
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19. INVENTORIES 19. &
2012 2011
S=2k —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥For A RS TF T

At cost bi:9 7 N

Raw materials R K 19,596 31,239
Work-in-progress E& 31,744 29,047
Finished goods LYK o 35,249 57,289
86,589 117,575
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 20. FEUWEBRA K H b FE W FRIE LA K FE A3 FRIE

2012 2011

—E-—fF AR

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR¥ T ARET T

Trade receivables JE UK BR 53R 526,492 500,860
Less: allowance for doubtful debts JE - R (17,324) (6,804)
509,168 494,056

Prepayments to suppliers ) 4 7 TR ST RO 208,463 88,195
Prepayments for operating expenses £ B ST TR SRR 54,601 51,288
Other receivables H th & R TE 1,365 2,433
863,597 635,972

Included in the trade receivables is an amount of approximately
RMB61,307,000 (2011: RMB18,756,000) from TTG, which was
one of the top five customers of the Group. Further details are
disclosed in note 5(e).

Included in the prepayments to suppliers are prepayments of
RMB219,540,000 to TTG for purchasing cottons, in which bills
of RMB182,000,000 were issued to TTG before 31 December
2012. The bills will mature from April to June 2013 and the
raw materials are expected to be delivered from February to
August 2013. TTG, which was also the largest supplier of
the Group in manufacturing and distribution of cotton yarns
segment, contributed purchases of cottons of approximately
RMB227,407,000 (2011: RMB321,051,000), representing about
17.9% (2011: 28.5%) of the purchases of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

92

YRR BB NRLEHE (AEBAAER
F2—) ZERZ# ARK61,307,0007T (=&
——%F: AR%518,756,0007T) < E—FFHE
R 5 E -

MEEEEN 2 REBRBEREBRIERA R
B9 TR N 2 BB A R #219,540,0007T
AEEER S == A = —E
b 1A 2R 2 4 4 3 1 = 4R A R 6182,000,000
T ZEZESR T —=FNAZE A3
B OEMEEER - =F_AZ/\AX
M- ZEGBNMAAEBRRER D HIRY D
HrmAEEE REE-_F2——F+=-A1
=+ HALtFEAAEEERIREHEES
4 N R¥227,407,000C (ZFE——F: AR
#321,051,00070) ' HE R B EFE417.9%
—T——4F:285%)°
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 20. BEWERA K H b FE W FRIE ALK T 13 R IE

(Continued)

Apart from the cash sales from its retail business, the Group
generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 120 days to
its trade customers. The aged analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) presented based
on the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates is as
follows:

(%&)

BRREETEXB 2 ASHEN ARE—
RETHEHEFI0E120H 2 FHEER -
AEE YRR (MR REREE) NS B
AAEERERNER A (RKRSER A A
)2z REDHTAT :

2012 2011
—EF-=F LG~ i
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARE T AT

Trade receivables: JE U AR 3R -
0 - 30 days 02 30H 136,497 120,531
31 - 60 days 31260H 171,193 86,790
61 — 90 days 61%£90H 94,676 &Je) forake)
91 - 180 days 91%180H 89,204 229,084
Over 180 days HB#®180H 17,598 24,108
509,168 494,056

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits
based on results from investigation of historical credit records of
these customers. Majority of trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have no default payment history. It is the
Group’s policy to make provision against debts which normally
aged over 90 days, except for some specific customers granted
with longer credit period, because historical experience is such
that receivables that are past due beyond 90 days are generally
not recoverable.

However, included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB24,562,000 (2011:
RMB29,967,000) which were past due at the reporting date but
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality of the
relevant customers and the Group believes that the amounts are
still recoverable as there are subsequent settlement. The Group
does not hold any collateral over the above balances.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

Aging (based on the invoice date) of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired:

20.

FE WA RR R B L A B WK IR DA R LAY TR
(%)

BB HERE 2 BB R RER (ENEER
B :

2012 2011
SER=2k —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFor
91 - 180 days 91£2180H 6,964 5,859
Over 180 days HBim180H 17,598 24,108
24,562 29,967

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RER A 2 &
2012 2011
—E-—fF —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®FT AN EETFI
Balance at beginning of the year F SRR 6,804 1,541

Impairment loss recognised on PIEWRRFER 2B EEE

trade receivables 10,520 5,263
Balance at end of the year FAREEBR 17,324 6,804

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2012
are amounts of approximately RMB17,790,000 and RMB69,000
denominated in United States Dollars (“US$”) and HKS,
respectively, which were other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities. As at 31 December 2011, there were
approximately RMB32,093,000 and RMB69,000 denominated in
US$ and HKS, respectively.

RZBE——Ft-A=+—8 BlERE
H & WK IR 2 BB £ AR #17,790,0007T
K AR ¥69,000TIAETT ([ET]) RETT
(YFEEEERZEER)FHEINIE
I =i e e ey S = S5 0s b Sjal
R #32,093,0007T & A K #69,0007T A T
KAETTHEZ IR
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BE—F——F+_A=1—HIFEF
21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at variable rates as follows:

21. BEERFBITER RTERRRAS

RITHEBRIRTIFB A X E

2012 2011
e i 5 M

FREEHE

Range of interest rates per annum

Pledged bank deposits mainly represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure the bills of RMB182,000,000, which were issued
to TTG before 31 December 2012.

The pledged bank deposits of the Group carrying fixed interest
rates at the following various interest rates per annum:

0.01% to 0.385%
0.01E £0.3852

0.01% to 0.50%
0.01E £0.502

ERBETEREEREERSR_ZE—Z_F
+—_A=+—HAaRZFEHHEELZ ARK
182,000,0007c 2% 2 M EH FER1T 217

AL BB EFRITFFIZ NI R EE & H

it

2012 2011
—g-—f —g——¢%

Interest rates per annum F FI =

Included in the Group’s bank balances is a bank balance
with Laishang Bank Co., Ltd. (“Laishang Bank”), which is
a local commercial bank that is registered in Laiwu City of
Shandong Province and operates in the PRC, amounted to
RMB1,204,439,000 (2011: RMB833,402,000) that carries an
interest of 0.385% per annum (2011: 0.5% per annum). Based
on the records of Laishang Bank, the Chairman of the Company,
Mr. Liu Qingping, is one of the 14 directors of Laishang Bank as
at 31 December 2012 and 2011. Mr. Liu has declared that he
does not hold any equity interest in the bank, and has tendered
resignation of directorship in March 2010. In March 2013, the
bank has issued a confirmation stating that the resignation of
Mr. Liu was approved and the bank is in the process of updating
its records for the resignation. Further details in relation to the
Group’s credit risk are disclosed in note 36(b).

Included in bank balances and pledged bank deposits as at 31
December 2012, which were approximately RMB117,000 and
RMB1,093,000 denominated in US$ and HKS, respectively, other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities.
(2011: Approximately RMB2,577,000 denominated in US$ and
RMB7,403,000 denominated in HK$).
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0.01% to 0.385%
0.01E £0.3852

0.01% to 0.50%
0.01E £0.502

AEBIRTTEARTE ARY1,204,439,0007T
—T——4F: AR#¥833,402,0007T ) F AR
mEIRTRDER AR ([HEmET] RILE
BRET IR P BLE 2 15 R TT)
ZIRITHERIEFERIR0.385E (T ——4F:
FHFKLE)FTE - IRBFKEIRIT 2888 R
= T RS e e I

ANRAREFBIEFLEAFKARITIILES
Z— B EB R B ESEZITEAEK
# YER-_Z—ZF-AREHTESH
B-RZE—ZF=ZF %I EBERE X
%%%iZ%%E%%& ZATEEE T
BUAMEER -BEAEBEERRZE—F
15 B/\\W.ESG( )i BB o

R-TFE——F+_-_A=+—H8 RT&8K
BEHEMIEITERF D BE L ARE117,000
TT R A R #1,093,0007T LAE TE KB 7T (I 3F
HEAERER 2 EE)TEZRE (=
——F: H AR 577,000CAZ TR AR
"7 403,0007T LAS TTEHE) ©
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22,

The analysis of the trade and other payables and accruals of the
Group is as follows:

AR R E BN RRAREE A

ARG 2 AN BR SR N L A B A R TR DA S JE A
BRI

2012 2011

Shd— = b
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFoT
Trade payables FETEBR R 85,611 92,675
Bills payables (note 20) & (Hat20) 182,000 70,000
Accruals fEstEH 82,016 67,734
Receipts in advance FE UL FRIE 12,103 18,743
Other tax payables H b SR I8 21,154 22,911
Others Hth 35,489 23,546
418,373 295,609

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade payable based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEERNBERELEEAERBEEOH R
NRKRE DA -

2012 2011

=F-—=F Sk

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AR T

0 - 30 days 0£30H 29,963 61,984
31 - 60 days 31£260H 3,692 7,496
61 — 90 days 61£290H 17,428 3,942
91 - 180 days 91Z2180H 13,939 5,948
Over 180 days Hi®m180H 20,589 13,305
85,611 92,675

All bills payables of the Group are aged between 91 to 180 days
and are not yet due at the end of the reporting period.

Included in trade and other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2012 were approximately RMB29,286,000 and
RMB5,199,000 denominated in US$ and HK$, which were other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities.
There were approximately RMB25,917,000 and RMB3,764,000
denominated in US$ and HK$, other than the functional currency
of the respective group entities as at 31 December 2011.

AEBEEEMNEZE 2R T91E180
B RfEEEE R DAREIH-

R-E——F+-_A=+—H8 ENEZKL
HitnE N RBEARBHEAF I RBHOAR
#29,286,0007T & A R #5,199,000 T LA FE TT
RABT (LFESEBEBZNEEE)FEZ
RE-N_ZE——F+_A=+—8 25
BHAREE25,917,0007T K A R #3,764,000
TTAETEB T (THFSEEERZIEE
B EHE 2 FUE
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23. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 23. Ef—EBRENRE
The amount due to a shareholder represents an amount EN—Z2BEEFBEERANFAEEF
of HK$32,000,000, which is equivalent to approximately Z —232,000,000 T (HERNW AR
RMB27,200,000 (2011: HK$32,000,000, which is equivalent to 27.200,0007% ). ( =25 %= : 22 0100000
approximately RMB27,200,000) advanced by Harvest Sun to BT (HENH ARE27,200,000T) ) &
the Group and carries fixed interest at the rate of 5.25% (2011: B BEEFHMERS2E(ZE——F:525
5.25%) per annum and repayable within one year. B) BR—FRNEE-
24. BANK BORROWINGS 24. BITEE
2012 2011
—2-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AR¥TFor
Bank loans RITER 103,000 163,810
Analysed as: DA -
Secured BHEM 50,000 42,000
Unsecured EEA 53,000 121,810
103,000 163,810
The exposure of the Group’s REBEERT:
borrowings are as follows:
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 98,000 163,810
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 5,000 =
103,000 163,810
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24. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 24.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) of the Group’s borrowings are as

RITEE (&)

AEBEEZERME (BERSFTHNX)
BEEINMT

follows:
2012 2011
—E-CfF —T——F
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 6.00% to 5.14% to
7.80% 13.12%
per annum per annum
F 7| $£6.00E FFR5.14]E
£7.80E £13.12E
Variable-rate borrowings FEEBE 120% of 1-year =
benchmark
lending rate of
the People’s
Bank of China
FEARBT
—FHER
EHEF R Z2120%
Denominated in: AT Z B ETE
RMB ARK 103,000 152,909
Us$ = - 10,901
103,000 163,810

All borrowings are repayable within one year from the end
of the reporting year except for RMB30,000,000 (2011:
RMB42,000,000) which are repayable on demand due to the
breach of loan covenants (see the note below for details).

The effective interest rates for the bank borrowings are 7.00%
and 7.85% per annum as at 31 December 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Included in the above bank borrowings are unsecured borrowings
of RMB48,000,000 from Laishang Bank that carry interest at a
fixed rate of 7.8% per annum. The borrowings will mature on
September 2013. Further details are disclosed in note 36(b).

FIEBEYNENREFEAZERBT—FR
B3  tE AR #30,000,0007T (— T ——4%F:
AR #42,000,0007T) BN E R IEER#H &
REREEE (FBEBE2BETXHE) °

IRES— =R == =E—E
ZIRITEEBRFRES 5| A7.00E &7.85
EO

FRITEERERERGBIT 2 ERTE
B AR #48,000,0007T ' 1%z & & F F| &7.8E
HE REEBEENR-_ZE—=FhA3H-
H— S B RKI E36(0)H FE -
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24. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

24, RITEE (E)

2012 2011
- —EE——kE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T AT
Unsecured bank borrowings LA T & 7 R B
guaranteed by: |ITEE:
REREYTEEEZBRAR REREPMEEES 48,000 48,000
([Fe#EZRE ) *ﬁ_ﬁE’AT(FHTAAJ)
Laiwu City Economic Development and REMERBIE - 22,000
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Laiwu City”) ﬁlﬁ’& A) ([FzEm])
TTG REGRE - 20,000
HHEZR B Laiwu City and TTG are independent third parties. HERE RHEMMRENBHRBEIFE=

Note:

Approximately RMB30,000,000 (2011:

RMB42,000,000) of

the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December 2012 are
required to be secured by certain inventories of approximately

RMB50,222,000 (2011:

RMB83,193,000) pursuant to

f

o

M -

relevant bank borrowing agreements. However, as at 31
December 2012, the carrying amount of the relevant pledged
inventories was only approximately RMB8,434,000 (2011:
RMB27,892,000), which is lower than the amount required,
resulting in these bank borrowings being immediately repayable
due to their breach of covenants. These bank borrowings have
been presented in the earliest time band in the liquidity table in
note 36(b).
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5 55510, 0100, 0005 ( == —=451 A E L5
42,000,0007T ) & & LA#) A R #50,222,000
T (ZF——%: AR#83,193,0007T) 2
ETEEEEER -AM K= —=F
+=-—A=+—H  {HECEEFEEZRAE
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25. DEFERRED TAX

The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon during

the current and prior years:

25. JEAERIH

TRIFAEERAFERBEFEERZ
IZEEHRAEAB(BE) REE:

Undistributed

earnings

of PRC’s

subsidiaries

from

Allowance on 1 January
inventories 2008 Total

FRE K A A

B=Z2ZN\F

—BA—BE&Z
FERE R K EF et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETF T AEEFT AT T
At 1 January 2011 e et (2,699) 37,401 34,702
Charge to profit or loss neEs= - 22,402 22,402
Credit to profit or loss SFABE - (28,671) (28,671)
At 31 December 2011 N e e e N e e (2,699) 81,132 28,433
Charge to profit or loss EEl=RiE - 24,855 24,855
Credit to profit or loss FFABE - (9,556) (9,556)
At 31 December 2012 gk = s e = (2,699) 46,431 43,732

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

TR BREMEZEEHBLERD

financial reporting purposes: #r
2012 2011
—E-——fF Sedeg e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ABRET T
Deferred tax asset REFRIEE = 2,699 2,699
Deferred tax liability RERIEEE (46,431) (31,132)
(43,732) (28,433)
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25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

26.

Deferred tax has been provided for allowance on inventories for
the slow moving but not damaged inventories and withholding
tax in respect of the undistributed profits attributable to the
Group as earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries starting from
1 January 2008. Under the New Law, distribution of such profits
to their shareholders outside the PRC are subject to withholding
tax.

The Group has unused tax losses of RMB13,689,000 and
RMB12,917,000 available to offset against future profits at
31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses of
RMB1,904,000, RMB1,715,000, RMB3,367,000, RMB1,976,000
and RMB771,747 will expire in 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and
2017, respectively. The remaining tax losses have no expiration.

SHARE CAPITAL

25, JEIEFIIE (42)

ERFHERERFREZFERERASKE
BEAEETEMBLARE —TTN\F—A
— BEPTERE Z R 7 s N 2 FBINTRAE R
FERLIR A - ARIBHBOE - AP BIRSNRER D
K % i M B BUR TR IO

N N SRES e s = RS e —
H AX&SESREADEREBEARE
13,689,0007T & A R #12,917,0007T ] A 7
HEEH AR T A o ;1 HA R RE TE RN AR 2 4 | 2K IR
W E SRR EEEERELEHIBEE -
AR #1,904,0007t « A R #1,715,0007C * A
R #3,367,0007t « A R #1,976,0007T & A
REETT1, 747 T2 RIBEBED IR =2 —=
o TEI—[ljeE o ZER—TF %=« = FE=gx%EE T
ZE—tFEm-HR TRIEBEYEERB

Hi o
26. B
Number of shares Amount
RHEE ik}
RMB
AR

Ordinary shares of
RMBO0.088 (HK$0.1) each:

Authorised:
At 1 January 2011,
31 December 2011 and 2012

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2011,
31 December 2011 and 2012

FRYEE A R¥0.0887T
(0.18L) 2 E@MK

e ¢
IN=E——=— F—[gk
e e Rt

1,320,000,000

F=EA=E4—=E 1,500,000,000
BERITRAR:
N E ek ey ﬂ E

T oy B =

TR E G E 1,000,000,000

88,000,000
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27.

28.

102

SPECIAL RESERVE/PRC GENERAL RESERVE

The special reserve relates to Shandong Taifeng and represents
the difference between registered capital and the net assets
contributed by its shareholders prior to 1 January 2007.

According to the relevant requirements in the memorandum
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, a portion of their profits after
taxation is transferred to PRC general reserve. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners. The general reserve fund can be used to offset
the previous years’ losses, if any. The general reserve fund is
non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT RESERVE/CAPITAL RESERVE

Prior to the completion of a corporate reorganisation in 2009,
Mr. Liu, a director and a shareholder of the Company, acquired
an additional 5.14% equity interest in Shandong Taifeng from
the original shareholders of Shandong Taifeng at a nominal
consideration of US$100 as token of appreciation of his standing
commitment, continuous support and contribution to the Group,
upon the completion of a two-year service as a director of
Shandong Taifeng from 17 April 2009.

The fair value of the additional 5.14% equity interest at the date
of transfer was approximately RMB17,476,000 according to the
valuation report from an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle
Sallmanns Limited. The share-based payment reserve represents
the amount recognised as share-based payment expense which
is calculated with reference to the difference between the above
nominal consideration paid by Mr. Liu and fair value of the shares
at the date of transfer, and is expensed on a straight-line basis
over two years service period commencing 17 April 2009. The
share-based payment expense of approximately RMB2,913,000
has been included in the directors’ emoluments as disclosed in
note 11 for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the interest-free advances from shareholders in previous
years and the principal amounts at inception, as adjusted by the
effect of the early repayment.

27.

28.

R RIfEE P E—REE

Bl ERLURESER HaMEAER
BRER-_ZZLF—H—BHREAZEER
BERZERE-

REAEETRENEB LR RAMEREANHENE
BRE AREISBRBEENEREHE
— KR RRREERLARAERTA
AR R BRI - —REFBES T ARE
HBEFEBE (MEF) BRBBRN —REH
BESIEREDIK-

BRONSRAERERFEE

E_ZTNFZEEBATHKA B84 (K
REAEERBERINZKAE _ZEZTNEFTA
TEHABHEILRFEESET MFREH
& ARBAREI00RTAILRFE Z Rk
RERWIB RTINS A4% A = - A
B EHARE L FRMESFRIIBLE
& o

RIFB Y G EMPEETAP AR A RS
ZIEERE LIS AINRAE RN EE
HH 2 A FEL A ARME17,476,0007T © B
DNREBI2E iR 2I R £ 2 5=
ANREBERDREZB P2 AFEZ Z5Et
5 BRERONFRALIzeE WA ZZTF
NEEA+T+tHRZMERBHARNAERE
e B E =t = f = —[Ellt%
& BB RE I 4 A RE2,913,0007C E 5
A EZE ESHES A -

BARREEEERNEBEFEMREHR R EBR
ZRFERRBRZACER 2 Z8 Wik
RAEBEZFETUHE-
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29.

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group mainly participates in retirement benefit schemes
organised by the local government authority in the PRC. The local
government authority in the PRC is responsible for managing the
pension liabilities to these retired employees. For the pension
liabilities to these retired employees, the Group is required to
make monthly contributions at 16% (2011: 16%) of the local
standard basic salaries. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group’s total contributions were approximately
RMB3,664,000 (2011: RMB3,733,000).

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
() Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

29.

30.

BARER G E

NEBFE2EPHM T RFLEASH 2
RREAE-p R RFREEEERE
ZERKEEZRARSEM -REZZERINE
B RAREEAME  AEEERD HIZE
BERFE&216% (ZF——F :16% ) 1EEF A
R o= = =4 = B == Gl %
B AEBE 2B RBEELN A AR S,664,000
7T (ZF——4%F: AR%S,733,0007T) °

BB ATRE

I EBALXRS

FA - AEEERBALETTIR
s

2012 2011

—E-CF —E——fF

Name of related party Relationship Nature of transactions RMB’000 RMB 000

BEALTER B8 B% REME AR® T NG
Harvest Sun Substantial shareholder Interest expense

B TERE FERAX 1,378 1,395
Liu Qingping Executive director Interest expense

2B WITES FERAX 215 =

() Related party balance

Details of the balance with a related party are set out in note
23
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

31.

104

(lll) Compensation of key management personnel

The emoluments of directors who are also identified as

30. A LTIHE (£)

(nmy EEEEASRM

FREZ (ARRRER/LAEETEE

members of key management of the Group during the year BERE ) 2MEemT
were as follows:
2012 2011
= =t
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AEET T
Short-term benefits SRR 4,772 4,834
Post-employment benefit BER: 18 18 A 74 73
Share-based payment f& 1% 1 5% - 2,913
4,846 7,820
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. EEEH

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were
pledged to banks to secure the Group’s bank borrowings and
bills of RMB182,000,000, which were issued to TTG before 31
December 2012.

In addition, as required by a bank, the Group needs to
maintain certain inventories at a level at least equal to
approximately RMB50,222,000 and RMB83,193,000 to secure
the relevant bank borrowings as at 31 December 2012 and
2011, respectively. However, as at 31 December 2012, the
carrying amount of the relevant pledged inventories was only
approximately RMB8,434,000 (2011: RMB27,892,000), which
is lower than the amount required, resulting in these bank
borrowing being immediately repayable due to the breach of
borrowing covenants. Further details are disclosed in note 24.

RBEHELE R THEECERFIRT
AEBAEEBZBITEERR=_Z—=F
T AT HIRRELHBEHABRAR
#5182,000,0007T 2 B 2 #5 2 # 3 o

o E—ERITER AEERZZT—=
GBER ===t = B = =g E e
TEHEEDI#EFRELHEROARKE
50,222,0007T & A K #83,193,0007T 2 7K
T ERMBBRITEE 2B A R
—T——F+-_A=+—8 HABECEREF
B RHEEELN A ARKS,434,0007T (=&
——4F: AR¥27,892,0007T)  ERFIEE
BB ZERTEEAREREBERHR
BB B8 o 1 — 2P EF 1B 5E24 5 55 o

2012 2011

—g--F S S i

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR FT NE T

Inventories 7E 8,434 27,892
Bank deposits RITIF 72,965 46,761
Buildings, net book value BF (REFE) 38,992 &
Leasehold land, net book value HE LT (BREFE) 7,281 =
127,672 74,653
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32. OPERATING LEASES 32. KEHED

The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA

The minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during FRNREBELKLHOYTNZEBAEZREN
the year. To

2012 2011
—E—_—F D e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AR¥Tr
Premises ES 12,232 12,486

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

RBEHREEER  AEBRE A EHEK

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BIHAN TS B EIZH 2 AR FIEBE IR
operating leases which fall due as follows: APEWT

2012 2011
—g-=% By
RMB’000 RMB’000
A% FT AR T T
Within one year —F N 1,462 3,790
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERF (BEEEME) 2,213 585
3,675 4,375

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and production plants.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for a period of one to
three years.
33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 33.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
recognised share-based payment expenses of approximately
RMB2,913,000 and the amount was included in the directors’
emoluments. No share-based payment expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

34, ELEMERE

35.

106

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings
disclosed in note 24 and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Group review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost and the
risks associates with the capital. Based on the recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

AEBERE S M E B A BEH EARE
HHZBETE RREMETARTHE
@ ABRBRARGAZ EH- AR
BEEEEAFLERRTE

AEBZERNEBBREM T4 KR 2 R1T
EEARRRARERE AEIEER (BED %
TR R )

AEBEEETERRNENER RFTBED
EEQEREREBESZIKARFAMSEZRA
R-AKEERBEZTIHEER  BIRIK
B BTN RETHERIERRAR
HRFEARERBERGEE-

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EXRFEIE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT NGRS
Capital expenditure in respect of LU T A
the acquisition of land use rights BFEFAERR
and buildings contracted for but not RERE B E AT R
provided in the consolidated financial BEZ2ERNAX
statements 6,380 6,880
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

36.

TRITA

(@) &WMIAEZEH

2012 2011
= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 6,614 11,066
Loans and receivables B & W IE
(including cash and cash (PREEeRESEEY)
equivalents) 1,789,403 1,385,739
Financial liabilities =
Amortised cost B AR 433,300 377, 23]l

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investment, trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amount due to a shareholder and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
certain of these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to pledged bank deposits, amount due
to a shareholder and fixed-rate bank borrowings.
In addition, the Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances, pledged bank deposits and bank
borrowings.
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(b) MHEBEEBRBERBE

AEEZTECRTIABSEAHRLEER
B BUYSRR R B A U IR - B A
RITFEF RITEHRIRE  BAERK
Re E At A SRR - B — B AR FRIA LA
RFTEE - ZEeMIAZFBERS
BZMERE B TREERTAMN
AR eEMm SRR (FMRARKE
¥R  FEERBRLREE SRR B
EZFRBRIBEREN T EEEE
ERERGRARER  ARKRENREAX
HWRBUEE R

]
0 FIFmS

AEEZAFENRRERERRAD
EHRITER BN —RBRRFA
REBRITEEMBE LN K&
BT BRITHES DEMIR
TERMBITEEARBSREN
RE R -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

108

Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continueq)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to variable interest rates for
bank balances in saving accounts of Laishang Bank
which the Group has deposited over 90% (2011: over
90%) of its bank balances at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis
point (2011: 10 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2011: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB903,000 (2011: increase/decrease
by RMB625,000).

The directors consider that the exposure to interest
risk on pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings
are insignificant, so there is no sensitivity analysis
presented.

Currency risk

The Group have certain trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances, other payables,
amount due to a shareholder and bank borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies, hence risk exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

The Group has not entered into any foreign exchange
forward contract to hedge against these foreign
currencies risk exposure. However, management of the
Group will consider to hedge these balances should
the need arises.

36. $ETHEH(Z)

(b) MBEEBEZEERRBEK (£)

THEE (&)
0O FIEmELE(E)
BRREDT

(i)

LA TN RRE 2 T THAR IR 17 AR 4R
TREBERP ZBITHEBH 2 FEFE
EmEE - RREHEEER
RNEBHEION (T ——F: 8
0% ) ZIRITHEHBTEAKERIT -
ZAMIBRERREHELEE R K
FEZERMTAREFHRFRM
W FAS THRIOMEER (=F
——F0AEZ) AR EE
EEABEHRANEABRATAZL
X BEEEHANERSE R

2R E

A= FF TRBAOEEE (= F
——F 10AEZ) MmAEHEM
BHHREBIE  AAEEHEC
B —H+-A=+—RHIEEZ
BRETB R TG, R B AR
903,0007C ( —Z——4F : 1#h1,®
b AR #625,0007T) °

EER AR EBRRITERRIRT
fEEMASR ZHERREBR K FTIA
3 & 2 SIME R SURE DA

E¥m R

AEBHE TSNS HE 2 R YR
AR B R FOR - 2 ERRITF
o IRITAERR  HARMENSRIA - B
—EBRRREARRITEE - Btk
7 T I RO B 2 LR o

RERE W BB E DA B INER R R
MAEAISNEEMA AT KK
BERERNEFEREBH Tz
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency

36. ¢RI A(£&)

(b) BHEABEEEEREE (&)

s mEE (E)

(i) BE¥mEE (&)

K& BH - AEEUINEGHEZ

denominated monetary assets at the reporting date is EMEEZEDENR:
as follows:
2012 200117
—B——F e S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT N
Trade and other receivables P LS AR SR % L A i Wk IE
USs$ EY 17,790 32,093
HK$ BT 69 69
Bank balances and RITHEB R ERBIERITER
pledged bank deposits
Us$ =TT 117 2,577
HK$ BT 1,093 7,403
Bank borrowings RITEE
Us$ EYv - 10,901
Trade and other payables JE AF AR R M EL A B 5 3E
uss$ e 29,286 25,917
HK$ BIT 5,199 3,764
Amount due to a shareholder FES — B R R FIAE
HK$ BT 27,200 27,200
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

110

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continueq)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuation on US$. The following table details the
Group’s sensitivity to a 5% strengthening of RMB
against US$ and HKS$. 5% is the rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in US$ and HKS.

36. $EtTH (&)

(b) MBEEBEZEERRBEK (£)

THEE (&)

(i) EEmEE (E)
BRREDT
AEEEXEEHETEXRE 2R
@ TRAMAKBEHARELE

TC R BT ES% 2 BREE - 5% 5
NEf A EZEEEAB ZMINE R
FﬁﬁHthT’ BREBEHETRE

A e BB 2 FT Al o W AR R 3E
E&/%EEﬂES% 18 9 BR B 18 0 A

For a 5% weakening of RMB against US$ and HKS$, EEBREEERAR ZZE-
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit.
2012 2011
StR—==43 e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AT T
Increase in post-tax profit B B4 1% i 1 388 41 1,598 962

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at
the end of the reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the periods.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited 2 B2z
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T A (&)

MERABREEEERKE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continueq)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s and
the Company’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

As mentioned in note 21, the Group has deposited more
than 90% of its bank balances with Laishang Bank. The
directors of the Company believe that these bank balances
are fully recoverable after considering the financial position
and credit rating of Laishang Bank. Moreover, there is
no special restriction on withdrawal of the balances from
the bank. Up to the date of authorization of the issue of
these financial statements, approximately 10% of the bank
balance has been withdrawn and instead been deposited
into one state-owned bank in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with Laishang Bank with high credit ratings,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk as
a substantial portion of its trade receivables is generated
from a limited number of customers including TTG. As at
31 December 2012, the top ten customers of the Group
which are all located in and carrying on business in PRC
accounted for about 95% (2011: 86%) of the Group’s
trade receivables. These customers are private enterprises
engaged in manufacturing or trading business in textile
industry with no history of default. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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ME R o

AR EE21 AT - AN SR 890% 2 SR 1T 45
BREARBRIT - LEBRBRITLZ
MBEHRRAREEFRE ARARERR
R RERTHEAKATZEEE - 151
PREUF IR RR 1T Z A8 8R0 A5 IR 1 -
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10%RITAERRE W B W FE AR —
EE AR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

112

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
As set out in note 24, there are breach of covenants for
certain bank borrowings. However, the directors of the
Company believe that these bank borrowing facilities will
continue to be available and will not be withdrawn until the
maturity date.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2012, the Group has
available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
RMB109,605,000 (81 December 2011: RMB53,569,000),
details of the bank borrowings are set out in note 24.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

36. $ETHEH(Z)

(b) MBEEBEZEERRBEK (£)

MEBELEE

RERRHECRARTH AEEER
Y KR MREEENESNERER
BEABRNASELERRERERE
KRBT EZKF EREERRITEER
ZER WHERHE A E R - it
d2ARTE BETRITEEZRHEEE
ReAM RARABEETAR/ZLERITE
ERERN R A A4 A AT HIRE A
SR

BITEEAAEERBESCZEER
JReR=8==%F = == "as
SEFEAZABARITEREAEHA
R#109,605,0007t (=E——%F+—=A
=+—H: AR#¥53,569,0007T) * $R1T
BEEFHBHRWE24 -

TRHALAEESRABBEZRHRELD
B o X R T IRB A SR B A] BE AR B SR AT 3K
ZEFAHFEZERABRUARS
MEMGER -ZXREBRENERATHE
ME-WANESRERTZEN X RN R
SHEAE B ORRLR S BIR A R i AR5t

o

i
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BHEREEEEREE (£&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FBELERE (EZ)
Liquidiity table TBEL X
As at 31 December 2012 N-—ZE——F+=-A=+—H
Weighted
average of Repayable Less Total Carrying
contractual on than 1-3 3months  undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand 1 month months to 1 year cash flows 31.12.2012
Rn=g8-z%
2=
MEEH RERES Sr=1
RHFE EZREE HSR—BR 1-3f8A BAEIE REAR ZEHE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

% AREFT AREFT ARBFT AREFR ARBFR AREFT

Trade and other FERESRREMERNFE
payables - - 96,646 29,962 182,000 308,608 308,608
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate — B 7.2 - - - 5,360 5,360 5,000
- fixed rate —EEflx 6.99 30,000 - - 72,751 102,751 98,000
Amount due to a EN—BRENE
shareholder 5.25 - - - 28,628 28,628 27,200
30,000 96,646 29,962 288,739 445,347 438,808
As at 31 December 2011 R —==tEr = B ==
Weighted
average of Repayable Less Total Carrying
contractual on than 1-3 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand 1 month months to 1 year cash flows 31.12.2011
RIE——=%
=R
MmETH REFRE hianlH
AHFE EEXER SRR 1-3fE A EAZIE e LEHE
% RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
% AREFT ANREFT ARETFT ARETFT AREFIT AREFI
Trade and other ERRRREMERFE
payables = = 57,231 101,981 30,000 189,212 189,212
Bank borrowings RIfEE
- fixed rate —EEf= 7.85 42,000 - 39,163 89,921 171,074 163,810
Amount due to a B —2RRHE
shareholder 829 - - - 28,628 28,628 27,200
42,000 57,231 141,134 148,549 388,914 380,222
The amounts included above for variable interest rate BRI R B E R LN R AR A
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject AEE s (HEMNREEZ8 B3 A b
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those MIETE AR BE By YT A S5
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the & ZH o

reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

114

(c) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable. Level 1 fair
value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

36. $EtTH (&)

(c)

AVE

TREERERABIATEDRRE
BEMACEBEARBRRASRED
WEEE -

EERR HEYBRRARBIHKA
ANEZEREERERABBZ REER
HAFERSE-

TREANBRERRRAFETE
VKBAIBREATFEZREDRFE B
ZEMTRZOM -F—EBAFEE
TREHRREERBBERERTS 2K
B (RBE) -

2012 2011

= L

Level 1 Level 1

E—fE EH—IE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFor

Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 6,614 11,066

There were no transfers between levels in the current and
prior year.

RAFERBEFERALERNEE 2
EITER -
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37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting

period includes:

37. EEARRFAZHMBER

ARFRBEBOEE B 2 M EN B

2012 2011
—E-=F —F——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AT
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary —fE B A RKRE 180,007 180,007
Amount due from subsidiaries AN NGO 420,180 421,236
Bank balances SR1T 4R 1,057 5,184
Liabilities BfE
Accruals et &R (4,711) (2,295)
Amount due to a subsidiary B —EH B AR FKIE (2,727) (2,727)
593,806 601,405
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR K # %
Share capital A& 7 88,000 88,000
Reserves (note) s () 505,806 513,405
593,806 601,405
Note: Wit
Reserve of the Company: KRR ZFHEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R E Z5tE#R st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR¥TT AR TFr
At 1 January 2011 R-®——%—A—H 522,054 877) 521,177
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A F| & & T W 25 48 58
for the year = 196,228 196,228
Dividend recognised and paid as BRESRREMNZERE
distribution - (204,000) (204,000)
At 31 December 2011 R-E——F+=-A=+—8 522,054 (8,649) 513,405
Profit and total comprehensive income £ R ) N & U 25 42 58
for the year - 78,401 78,401
Dividend recognised and paid as REDKERENZERE
distribution z (86,000) (86,000)
At 31 December 2012 R-—®—=—F+-A=+—H 522,054 (16,248) 505,806
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 and
2011 are set out below:

38. MEBLARFE

N e T i T
B ZEMBARZFERIINT:

Place of Registered
incorporation/ capital/issued Held by
Name of subsidiary operation share capital the Company Principal activities
aEmELR
(g PN AR i B BETRA FAREE TEXHB
%
%
Yong Xin British Virgin Islands US$1,000 100 Investment holding
FER REBRUES 1,000% 7T 100 REER
Ever Link Creation Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding
KEBIEERAR BB 28T 100 REER
Shandong Taifeng (note) The PRC RMB180,000,000 100 Production and distribution of
cotton yarns and bedding
products
IWREE (f5t) & AR #180,000,0007T 100 HEERDHERY RKMm
Shanghai Taifeng Home The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 Distribution of cotton yarns
Textile Co., Ltd. and bedding products
(“Shanghai Taifeng”) (note)
FERERGERAA [ A E.#1,000,0007T 100 2 AR KK m

(Ttsx=g]) (K

Note: ~ Shandong Taifeng is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise while
Shanghai Taifeng is a domestic enterprise with limited liability.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Hrat: IWRBRERIEBEDLSE M EERER—
MEABRE(ERE-

RERKFREMERE SHEHBLRES
EAERTERES-
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